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STRATEGIC REPORT
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ABOUT US

international Entertainment Holdings Uimited (the Company) is an international holding group, majority owned by
Providence Equity Partners. The principal activity of the Company is to hold companies that carry out complementary
activities across the value chain of live entertainment and theatre-related activity, principally in the UK, USA, and
Continental Europe (the Group). The Group considers that these markets have significant potential for growth which

forms the basis for the Group’s strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Company’s main operating subsidiary holding in the UK is The Ambassador Theatre Group Limited (ATG}. ATG is
a global leader in live entertainment and is a fully integrated operator across the entire live entertainment value chain,
with activities in venue operations, ticketing, marketing services and content production. ATG also operates in
Germany through its subsidiary Mehrt-BB Entertainment GmbH (Mehr1-BB), and in the US through its subsidiaries The
Ambassador Theatre Group US Holdings, Inc and I1EHL US Holdings, Inc,

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The Group is focused on providing a high level of service to two groups of customers: producers and audience
members. By making the end-to-end “customer journey” of our audience top priority, we ensure that our venues are

the best stages for the highest quality content developed by both our own in-house as well as 3rd party producers.
Venue Operations

The aim of our venue operations division is to provide a great service to both producers and audience members. ATG

generate revenues from renting venues to productions as well as selling food and beverages to audience members.

Many of the Group’s venues are historica! buildings which have an important significance in their local areas.
Investment in the maintenance of these buildings is central to the Group’s custodianship of them for the benefit of
future generations of audiences. The development and improvement of these venues to meet the needs and

expectations of today’s audiences and producers are equally important.

ATG operate 58 venues across Britain, the US and Germany. The Group’s impact on these venues takes significant
investment, in some cities ATG have restored closed and forgotten theatres like The Colonial Theatre in Boston, the

Hudson Theatre in New York and Stockton’s Globe theatre, back to their former architectural and trading glory.

The Group’s portfolio includes historic West End theatres such as the Duke of York’s, Harold Pinter, Piccadilly, Savoy,
the Apolio Victoria and the Lyceum, home to Wicked and The Lion King respectively. ATG also operate venues across
the UK in major cities such as Birmingham, Bristol, Edinburgh, Glasgow, Lliverpocl, Manchester and many more. We
programme, present and operate two music-focussed arenas: the historic Globe in Stockton, and the Digital Arena on

the waterside in Swansea.
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In the US, we run two Broadway houses: the Lyric Theatre, now the Broadway home of Harry Potter and the Cursed
Child, and the Hudson Theatre, reopened in 2017 as a playhouse. Over the years, ATG have grown their footgrint to
manage venues in Brooklyn, Boston, Detroit, San Francisco, New Orleans, San Antonio, and Sugar tand, Texas. In

Europe, we operate theatres in Berlin, Cologne, Disseldorf, Hamburg and Bochum.
Ticketing

The Group operates the largest theatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the majority of tickets to shows in our

venues through our own ticketing businesses.

ATG process more than 16 million tickets a year for hit musicals, acclaimed pfays, cancerts, comedy shows and a

variety of other live events across the UK, US and Germany.

We run some of the world’s most popular theatre ticketing sites, with ATGtickets.com alone attracting over 40 million

unique visitors a year.

Complementary brands include TicketsDirekt.de, LOVEtheatre.com and Group Line which is the UK market leader for

group sales and consistently voted “Best Ticketing Agency” by industry peers.
Content Production

A key strategy of the Group's Content Production division is to find, secure and produce high-quality shows for both

ATG and third-party venues,

Working alongside the world’s leading producers and creative artists, ATG's venues present a diverse range of top-
quality entertainment. The Group’s West End and Broadway theatres host long-running hit shows such as Disney's
The Lion King, Wicked and the award-wining Harry Potter and the Cursed Child. Newer shows in London include
Moulin Rouge! The Musical. Star performers appearing on ATG stages include Jake Gyllenhaal in Sunday in The Park
with George, Tom Hiddleston in Betrayal, Uma Thurman in The Parisian Woman, lan McKellen in King Lear and Eddie
Redmayne and Jessie Buckley in Cabaret. Many of these shows were created by ATG's in-house producers. ATG's
regional venues in the UK and US present top musicals and plays including Hamilton, The Book of Mormon, Les
Misérables, Mamma Mia, Jersey Boys, and in Germany shows such as Harry Potter and the Cursed Child, Moulin

Rougel The Musical and the long-running production of Starlight Express in Germany.

Music is a key feature of the ATG venue programming, with the world’s top music artists appearing regularly on our
stages. Recent highlights include Billie Eitish, Bob Dylan, Bruce Springsteen, FKA Twigs, John Legend, Paloma Faith,
Marlah Carey, Tom Jones, Stevie Wonder and Diana Ross. The mix is completed with the very best comedy, dance,

opera, and much more to delight audiences in our venues across the globe.

The Group develops and produces new content in addition to co-producing, investing in and presenting content from

independent producers.
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ATG's In-house production team, ATG Productions, are dedicated to producing critically acclaimed, commercially
successful and creatively ambitious work for the West End, Broadway and beycnd. Recent projects in the UK includes
the critically-acclaimed Cabaret at the Kit Kat Club, West End hits Pretty Woman: The Musical and 9 to 5 the Musical,
Jamie Lloyd Company productions including Cyrano de Bergerac, Betrayal and the upcoming Sunset Boulevard starring
Nicole Scherzinger — and lan at 80, which celebrated Sir lan McKellen’s birthday with an 80-date UK tour and West

End season in support of British theatre.

On Broadway, recent productions include A Doll's House starring Jessica Chastain, Plaza Suite starring Matthew
Broderick and Sarah-Jessica Parker and David Byrne's American Utopia, Caroline or Change, Betrayal, Sea Wall/A Life,

and Sunday in the Park with George starring Jake Gyllenhaal.

ATG’ European production arm, Mehr-88 has produced Beriin Berlin, West Side Stery, The Bodyguard and Disney’s
Beauty and the Beast.

Marketing

The Group through its subsidiary companies of AKA Group, headquartered in London and BB Group (a subsidiary of
Mehr-BB), head-quartered in Mannheim, Germany, is able to offer a wide range of marketing services, which are in-
line and complementary to the Group's overall strategy. AKA, 2 global entertainment marketing and media advertising
agency for the live entertainment, arts and cuitural industries has offices in London, Manchester and New York. AKA
has continued to support the Group's strategy of developing independent yet complementary business lines to
provide a fuli-service experience to clients within the theatre and live entertainment industry. Furthermore, AKA has
seen its business offering extend further afield with clients not directly linked to the live entertainment industry, such

as museums, galleries, gardens and zoological centres.

Alongside its production services, Mehr-BB Group, via its subsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for live

entertainment productions in German-speaking Europe.

The directors see the Group as strongly placed for future success, with its complementary activities and operations

located in each of the key theatrical markets across the world.
REVIEW OF FY23

F¥23 has been a good year far ATG, the high quality of shows across our venues, in combination with great marketing
strategies, has drawn audiences back into venues returning to and exceeding pre-Covid attendance numbers. The
customer experience has been enhanced and we’ve seen greater customer satisfaction than previous years, from
point of purchase through to audiences leaving venues having enjoyed the best of live entertainment and the best

experience through F&8 and customer experience teams across our venues.

Our production teams have continued to win awards for their work and our ticketing teams have improved the

mechanisms for purchasing tickets securing their best reviews on Trustpilot to date. Our venues have seen huge

investment and continue to be adapted to provide Producers with the best stages and technical support for our
4
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productions. Qur Creative Learning team have reached more community groups with our outreach and learning

opportunities, than ever before.

Overall, the Group has experienced a resurgence and revitalization in its full year of post-COVID-19 operations with a
record operating profit for the year of £120.5m {2022: £15.3m). 1his directors expect this growth to continue in FY24

as the Group continues to deliver high quality content and service at ali of its venues.

Advanced ticket sales

The Group has maintained its advance sales balance of £187.7m (2022: £190.4m) relating to tickets sold which
remains higher than pre-COVID-19 levels. Much of the advance sales liability is due to the focus on high quality content
and increasing ticket sales in the year, as highlighted by the KP! analysis below. This is seen as a key indicator of the

future success of the business, as It reaffirms that the Group is able to provide appealing shows in its venues.

Capital structure and investment

As of year end, our senior drawn debt facilities were £295.7m with an additional £70m of undrawn facilities remaining.
This is a reduction over the prior year as the Group voluntarily repaid £68m on the loan during the current year. The

Group also had sharehoider loans of £150m (2022: £155.6m).

The business continued its level of investments in property, plant and intangible assets with £52.0m {2022: £27.7m)
invested in property, plant and equipment (refer to note 15}, £5.3m (2022: £2.1m) invested in software and £2.9m

invested in other intangibles (2022: £nil) {refer to note 14).

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

Non-Financial Global Admissions Global Occupancy Number of tickets soid

15.3m T73.3% 13.4m

Financial Revenue Operating profit
£705.0m £120.5m oporating profit

PN EE T
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Non-financial KPis

- Globat admissions {(number of tickets issued for a performance that has occurred) have increased compared
to FY22 as our venues were closed for part of FY22 due to COVID restrictions.

- Global occupancy {number of tickets sold compared to the total number of tickets available for sale) has
increased by 6.2% compared to FY22. Qur global occupancy of 73.3% indicates the further headroom for
growth.

- Number of tickets sold (ticket sale transactions by the Group for Group performances during the relevant
period that may be for performances that mature beyond the relevant period) has increased by 61.4%

compared to FY22 as our venues were closed for part of FY22 due to COVID restrictions,
Financial KPis

- Revenue of £705.0m increased by 120% compared to FY22 (£321.0m} as sales recovered in the first full year
since COVID. Please refer to note 5 for geographical analysis of revenue.

- There was an operating profit in the period of £120.5m, an improvement on the operating profit in FY22 of
£19.3m.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the period-end is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 39

and 40, the consolidated statement of cash flows on page 42 and in the related notes on pages 43 to 86.

- Cash from operating activities was a net cash inflow of £175.9m (2022: inflow of £142,0m). This reflects the
recovery from the impact of COVID-19 on the year’s trading, with an operating profit of £120.5m {2022: £19.3m)
and positive net working capital cash flow of £24.7m (2022: £79.5m).

- investing cash flows include £57.9m {2022 £31.9m) of capital expenditure.

- Financing cash flows include repayment of £68m of bank loans, £23.1m of repayment of finance lease liabilities,
repayment of other borrowings of £20.5m and £40.6m of interest payments. Closing cash was £125.9m, down
from £146.5m at 26 March 2022 and induded a £11.3m escrow balance (2022: £10.6mj).

Leverage and liquidity

The Group compiied with its net leverage covenant throughout the period.

The net leverage covenant specifically focuses on the drawn senior debt of the Group so excludes shareholder loans

and finance lease liabilities {refer to note 21).

Net debt for covenant purposes at 25 March 2023 was £181.3m (£295.7m of senior debt, finance lease liabilities of
£0.4m, net of cash (excluding escrow) of £114.7m). This was £50.0m lower than the prior year ending balance of
£231.3m, attributable to the operating cash generation by the group in FY23.
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As at 25 March 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of £125.9m (2022: £146.5m),

Cash
including escrow accounts of £11.3m which are held for use primarily in connection with specific
productions. The Group also had additional available revalving facilities of £70.0m (2022: £70.0
million). The cash balance decreased by £20.6m In the period, while freely available cash {not
held in escrow) decreased by £21.3m.
£m
Operating cash flows 175.9
Investing cash flows (55.0)
Financing cash flows (147.0)
Net cash flows (26.1)
Impact of foreign exchange 55
Movement in cash balance {20.5)
Borrowings  The Group has total available bank facilities of £365.6m, of which £70m remains undrawn at the

period end.

The senior debt is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the Group. The

senior facilities agreement also requires the Group to comply with certain covenants. As at 25

March 2023, the Group was in compliance with its covenants.

The Group also has loans from its shareholders totalling £150.0m, including accrued interest

(2022: £155.7m). Interest on shareholder loans is non-cash paying and accrues at fixed rates

ranging between 4.0% and 5.0%.

The Group has finance lease creditor balances of £213.0m {2022: £178.2m).

The maturity of the debt is shown in notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Nothing beats the energy and excitement of a great live experience. That's why ATG’s mission continues to be to bring

the very best in live entertainment to the largest possible number of people.

On the 6th June 2023, ATG annaunced that it has agreed to combine operations with Julamcyn Theaters, which
cements our commitment 1o the US market, and to bringing the best in live entertainment to the widest audiences

possible.

The strong fundamentals that underpin the live entertainment industry combined with the quality of ATG's portfolio
of venues contribute to the Directors’ confidence in the long-term growth of the business in future years. The Group
continues to maintain its place as a global leader in live entertainment through providing high-quality content and

service to customers returning to theatres.



"SOUI0dU|
3jgesodsip  Jawoisny  Supdedu ‘spolsad snojAaLd J3A0 SJUBAR paRdadXauUN JO em
UO0ISS03) JO UMOPMO|S JWOU0I3 "JUBIUOI MOYS  IY) UL JudNfiSaJ 3g 0} usaaid sey Angsnpul 3aeayl Juepuane
UR SPIRMO) PIMENS AOU SISH AYL  Mau Jo JuawdoPaap ayl W Susaau pue siaanpoad 3y ‘AjjlesueisiH aepe 1suoua) e Jo djwapued 941341 W WINjUMoQ

‘S|9Ad| IAQD-2.d o1 pastewou sey  moys  yum  sdiysuonejps  Buonis  Buidopasp  jeqoid B se yans SUdA3  AJBUIPICEIIXT J3Y10
32UBPYUOI JAWNSUDD WO FI-QIAOD  pue Buununu ydnosyl uado JOU 3Je SIBIEBY) JO ‘SUCISSEIRS ‘SUMOPMOIS Jwouma Bupnpu)
10 vedwy) ayy 01 anp asuepusye  uaym spotiad yiep aBeurw pue suoipnposd Ayjenb  ‘aouepuane aseayl edwn WBIW ey (043U
BJ1EILYY Ul WINJUMOP B JO 3SI  YBIY YlM SIBWOLSND 12euNe 03 S| wie s dnoug ay) s dnouo ayy apising siolae) eiuaied ase aseyl

"SawiLIesB0.d JUSWIIRAL) pUR UCIEUIIEA
3yl JO S5330NS 3Y) 01 anp padnposiutes Bulaq
SUOLEINS3) JUBLWILIAACY JO YSU MO] B S| didyl

suonesado
Anful f ssau))l 153 J uonanpoutd sano Aue Jo Aem anuan Bupsaye
auses auyl Ul ‘sun) LOYS 10 saouewnojiad [enpiaput )

‘peaye 08 0} 3jqe Butag ‘0Z0Z 01 Upje suonendal  10j SLUONR|[BIUED MOYS BDIJ0U HOYS U) YAsal Aell SAst Awaplied
smoys Suipaye Anful fsseul jo  Buwgiosald w Bupinsal se sasod 6T QIAOD YsU Jo - 1sed juondnposd Buipunosns Apjueunwopasd -
$35€7 JOYI0 AuR S JUIBS IY) MOU St [9A3] 3Y) 325 J9FUOE OU SIUBWILIBACE) DUB $3JNSO[D  LOISSIUSURS] /SISED PASI|EI0] JOAIMOY SUDIIINIISIL
ssaupy 15ed fuononposd Jo ysu Byl 61 QIAQD Buimojjo) pauadoas ale suoiBdl |y 2(EISIPIM  PBXE]a) MOU  AABY  JUSWIUIAAOD

Jedh Joud wosy X5 J9 UOIPING uopehuw uondyasaq sysy [euonesado

"SAISRELXD 3¢ 0 PAPUAILE 30U S| paluasaid Jsi ayy “podas Siyy Jo 3lep ayJ I se SYsu jepueul pue jeuonesado jedidupd §,dnolg ay) 2q 01 Buimoljo) 3y} sapIsuod
sJ01334p ay) Juawadevew Aq mainal SuicBuo pue |eaoidde pieoq o3 13lgns ale sainpadold pue sadljod ‘S|0LU0D |EUIBIU PUE S8iNPa30ad ‘saidlod JO yiomausess
e YySnosy paBeuew pue palojuow e sysy 5,dnosg ay) "dnoI9 ay) Lo I3 [BUAIBW B JARY PINOI YIIYM S3uIeIacun pue sysu (ediduud ay) sloyuow pleog ayl

SIILNIVLYIINN ONV NSIH TYdIONINd

€20T HOYVIN ST G3AN3 JOId3d ¥33M Z5 JH1 HOod
(G3INNILNOD) 18O JIDILVYLS

Q3LIAIN SONIQTOH INJFAINIVIHILING TYNOLLVNYILNI



or

*5JeaA snolaad
SB 3WES YL VW SySI
Aja)es pue yijeay (esauan

"sawnfia) M3IAaL pue Bunipne [BuIaixe Juapuadapul
pue |eusaw sepndas Bupnpur sassanod Buuueid uoyae
pue 1335)331 51 |Bnuue ay) jo Lied 5; Juppiom 3)eS

‘ssa8euew 108f0id payijenb asnoy-ul Ag palojuow
PUE ‘parosdde ‘NaYNBAs JJB SIODRIUDD ‘Siiea]
SSH jeuoissajoad Aq dn payaeq “swiwesSoud pauueld

B Y1)M S2UBPI0IIE Wl $3NiTe) 19adsU) pUB JOJIUOW Jels Ajajes Buiyiom
PRyl uaag aney suoipiases  Buueau@ua pue jeuoielado Juajadwo) uawadeuew “@anrep AUJIN J0 WI03S ‘POOY ‘Al
Jnuapued se sieak Joud aui Ag paumD aJe Sysik AJajes pue y3jeay asay) ‘uonepesdap jasse ‘Alent ping prepuels-qns -
3U) WO PAsEaLdIap aney 6T 10 fuciieyadan pue ainnaseyur ‘supiing
-~QIAQD Jo pedads By) 9jeBiw  “RaJe SIY) JOJ FlEpUEW 2Y123ds B UM 3BPIWWO) pieog  Jo ludwaeuew pue adueuajulew yenbapeu) -
0} suofiedijqo [euciippe 3y} A pawsopad ale smalaal aduewlopsd seindas  !swalsAs Juawadeuew AJajes Mojj0) 0} unjiej e -
©1 palefai sysid Jijtoads pue 32e)d U 31e saunseaws ayeudosdde jeyy 2nsud :J0 3jnsa. e se pawsey Butaq 5108300
BY1 ING SURWS XSH SIYL 0] SJUBLISSASSE Y51 ORIBPUN SITLYYD puUe SSNUBA [y 10 JJes S15anB o} Buipes| SJUapHU) SNOLIAS JO ASiY
Jeak
uonedyn wondiseq Sisy [euoyieiadg
Joud WI0sf 4SH JO U3

£20Z HOYYI 52 Q3ANT dOIY3d X3IM TS IHL HOS
{GINNILNOD) LYOdIY I1DILVYIS
Q3ILININ SONITIOH LINIWNIVLYILNT TYNOILVNYILNI



1t

‘$4e3A
m:o_>u._a SB es aLy) suiewal ysiy

“peyne Suysiyd

[NYSSAIINS B JO SIIURYD Ay} JudAaad pue sSauRIeme
asie1 0} 4Je1s ||e 03 papiacad si Suiuiely Fuiodug
*s1s||epads

Avsed-pays [ewIaIXa pue jewsalul AQ pauieiview
pue pamalaal Ajsnonuiuos ale dnolg ayy ssosoe
N0 P3j|0J 3I9M D|yM 5|00} JudwaBeuew jeasy)

'$aNSS} AJUNIAS

40125 xajdwo2 pue paleansiydos e pajeasd
osje sey }1 Inq suogiesado s,dnoJH ayi paajord
sey ABojouyaal w aBueyd jo aded prdel sy

An3as 13gA)

*S1e3A
snotaasd SB JWes 3y SUlRWRI 3Siy

"BINIIE} WIBISAS EDILD B JO 35 9y} @)edw
0} syuawaBueiie AJInuUUOD SSUISNG pue AJaaodal
J)ses|p sjosued walsAs aded uj sey dnois ayy

“INUIADL 150} pue ssausng
2yl 4o suonesado ayl o3 uondnisip Jueayius)s
35ne) AW Wa)SAS [EDND © JO 3.n|1e) Byl
*$2559201d 1aWO)ISNI puUe SSALISNG ASY JO) SWiaIsAs
A3y Jo Jaquunu & uo Juapuadap s| dnois syl

SwAsAs
[EINLID SsauISNg

‘Buies
3y} sulewas anjea piatA sapunyoddo
yons jey; Bulnsua Yym pajesdosse
4512 9Y) Janamoy [sapunuoddo
uchisinbIe Ul 3sealduy Ue u| Jnsal
UED S}3YJBLU BUJ U) SUINIUMOQ "SIEDA
SnojadLd Se SWes Y3 SUIRW YSIY

“dnoug) ay) ojul paresBagul AjJuaiyd pue ARANDISYR

aJie sassauisng paJinbae Apmau jeyy ainsua
0} pajeasd a.e suejd |BUOHIIUN-5S01D ‘DI|IEIAA

"PAMO||0) dJe SUONEINSDS PUR SME]| [BIO)

ey3 pue ‘uoiysinboe 01 Jopd Ino paused s| U
3np ajeudoidde jeyl aunsua o} siosjape Aued pays
yim SJom pue Ayape uojielBaju) pue uopisinboe
J0 3uauadya uedijuds sey Juawadeuey

"pasjjeal
Alinyssaaans Jou aue saiyunuoddo uoeasd anjea

pue saifiauds jenualod jj synsas pajoadxa piatA
J0U ARt SBUNJUAA SSaUISRG Mau pue suonisinbay

Je3A Joud woly 3s| jo UoPRINA

uonedpn

uopdysag

ugileaJtd anjea
Jo} ssnunyuoddo
J|qe|leae Jo 0N

€207 HOYVIN SZ J3AN3T Q0iY3d X33IM 76 3HL ¥0d
(Q3INNILNOD) L804I JI9ILVHIS
A3LINN SONITIOH INIJWNIVLYILNIT TYNOILVYNYILNI



“Ajdde
(M xe1 Suployyiim pue UMOUY MOU S) SPUBPIAD
O JUIWIL I} XY DY) SB PISEDIIBP SBY YSLI Y, 1Xe)

"§9|ftd J3jSULL] SYE PUND.IE AJUIRLIIUN jO UONINpal
0} anp JeaA Ju4IN 3y Ul paseaLIap sey siasuen
2lep 0} paR|as sl Y| "Blep {0 JajSueI} Sy} 4O}
SWSIUeYIBW Y4aD 343 Jouw Ajpealq AsyL "aded
Ul MOU 3J0j2u3Y) a.e Ady) pue alenbape se pajns
Udaq aney S3LNJ JIJSURL} WM BUL SIBjSuel| eleq

“tnoug ay; o3 edw 3jgeioy
aSNE3 10U piNoM pue JuedyuBisu) uewl 3
Y} W01 SJONIOM JO JAGUINY §,0N0JD ALY Se Jeah
Joud 3y} woly paseanap SeY ysH YL B2IOPIOM

A8

‘SPUIPIAIP 2NN UO Xey Bulployyiim
Supnpuw  syyoud  Bunewyedss 0]  UCQRIBPISUCD
BumB ‘uxaug-isod Auewuag pue ¥ Y UyUM
SUOIIIRSURL) JOJUOW 0) $3nuIUo) dnoug ayy :xej

‘paau A3y} uollewnoju 3y fie
3ABY Aay) auns axew 0} (13 9yl woy Siaxom Joddns
0] 153G MOy J3PISUOI O] Snuiiuo am a8els S IV
-1sedwi pqeiou Aue Joj ydnous Juediiudis Jou de N3
3} WOJS $13YI0M JO JAGLNU § GNOID) Ay :9TI0MNI0OM

*Auewas) wouy siuawied puapiap
03 SulAjdde mou xey SuIPIoYYIM s1SU LW aY) Xey

‘arenbape aJe Aayl 18yl
Buyns s,uossiwwod veadoing ayy Buimoyoy aundal
MAU S J3PUN §3(NJ J3JSUBAL SN 2y} 03 13Igns st
e1ep paldLISal ‘EZ0T YIUBN §7 JO SV :SJajsuely eleq

*SaL1JUND? JAYIO WOJ} Sjeuoiieu
Jad se sesia J0p Aidde o1 pasu Aew A3y) YsIA JRY)
Joj suoseas pue Aels 13yy o yiduay ayl uo Jupuadap
‘pouad uonisuesy ayy Jaye Buinae seuoieu 3
1G4 JBAIMOY HifY AYI L) LIELLBI 0] WAY) mojje 01 33e)d

uxaug
ur spiendajes aaey pouad jeuonisuen ayy Buunp
‘3iqeIIRAR 1O 210J3q PIALLE OUM SIBUOIIRU N3 2NOGE| 0} 5§53y
"IX.g 32UIS BN U| PUB PAYSIQRISA 5.5 syynpoad 113 -UOU JeYy) 2INsuB ) ssaiddns ujew
MoU 3ie  {Alessaoau  aiaym) suiey Aiddns SI YHM padtiom sey dnout aul ‘eaud ui saseannu -2oe)d
2AI1EUIAY R S palediiw uRaq sey uondnisip uleyd
Aiddng AjBuipioxde pajsnipe usaq sAey sawiy 43335 J0 Ajddns jo Aupqejieneun jo ysis ay) Jsuede ul 9q 03 pasnbas salyewIo) SwWolsNI ayy 0} ahp
pea; ‘pareBuoj? st s533040 Loneyodun 3us Jspiym ajedniw o} ‘N3 3y) woy papodwl 1o painoejnuews paeap aq Aew spood pauodw 03 :spook 03 $5ANY
pue ‘pa1as sey JXaug JO ynsas Pasp e se suieys 1Y B4e YdUM S308d1ed Bayod pue saaq ‘Buim
Aiddns g'g4 03 palejas ysi 2yl :a8es9A2g PUE POOJ BY) Ul IJB YSH JO SERJR UlPW 3Y) :3FeJaAag pue Pooy 1SMojjo} se ysis Buod-uo awos
1Ii3s 322 3JaY13ng ‘PAAOWIII UIIY 10§a5dL) SBY 3IXAUY
|e3ap Ou B JO ysi 3YL ‘1Z0Z AJenuef T uo 330y o
13UwIFp 0} pRIajdwo UB3Q BABY SIPNE 3Wed NI By} YUM [eap apes] Ay '0zZ0Z Jaqwadag
pue uonemis sy Buloyuow Ajuejsucd ate 3 TE uo pandxa uxalg Joj pouad UORISURSY ay)
Jeak sopd woay 35u JO uonIBN uonedun Sys1 jeuonesado

uopdpsag

€707 HOYVIN SZ Q3AN3I Q01¥3d X3IIM ZS IHL YOS
(A3INNILNOD) LHOd3IY DIDILVHLS

GILINN SONITTIOH LINJWNIVIYILINTG TYNOLLYNYILNI



€1

‘sJeaA SN0 SB JLUES 3Y) SLIBWA JSIY

*AINNIDS
Fupmopgansiym Juspuadapu ue yim Jayiago
Anjod Buimojgaisiym e sey osje dnoss ayj

*$|OJJU0D |BIIUBULE BAIDIYD
pue $j0JJU0I |BNIILIIUOY ‘SIPNE Peljuod-aud
apnjaul uieys Aiddns s,dnoJso ayl uiynum sjosuod

"a3uel|dwol 3insud pue Jeis
2)eanp3a 01 Buutey pue s3Yod aasuayaidwod
Buipnpul syJomawely Jeap adeyd uy sey dnoug ay)

Aanejs usapow
pue uondniiod

A -
-dnouo ay1 03 pue Alagqug-nuy

adewep |[euoiRINGal PUr SauL UONNIFS0.d |IA1D
JO [BUIWLID 0) Pe3; PINOI JUIPIIUL YINs Auy "HIIM
paydiuod a1e sme| asay) 1ey3 aarjesadu sulewss
U {SH 19MO] 5| |2pow ssaulsng 5,dRoJD Y3 IS|IIYM

123k Jotsd Wouy %S1 JO uOIIING

uopedinn

uopdidsaq sysu jeucpesado

€Z0Z HOYVIN ST QIAN3 QOIM3d ¥33M 26 JHL ¥O4
(GINNLLNOD) LHOd3Y J193LVHLS
GILINIT SONIGTOH INJANIVLYIINTG TYNOILYNYILNI



~Jeah soud 3y woy dnoig
3} Joj paseaidul Jou sey ysu aueyoxa udalog

vl

'SJ0158AUT paXIeq
S} AN 10j 93Py {(BINIBU B SB S8 INSOOXI Se[0]
Sn ayL “s¥sti sBueysxe Acuannd udisiop W sadueyd
§0 351 JBIDUBUY JO JUIWSJR ue 01 )y sodxd ‘AuBLIBD
pue ¥sn 2y UM Alsejnajed ‘saniade s,dnoJg ayL

‘sa3ed aBueyaxe Adusain)
uizi04 Uy aBuey e o) anp AlNEjoA
10 %S Sy S sy SBueyoxa udiRiog ysu aueyaxa udiaiod

"SYUBC (eAUBD Aq SAje) 152130
0] S3SE3IOU) SB |[PM SB SIaNJEeW |epueuy
ayl w Aynejoa paseasnty 03 anp JeaA Joud
Y] w0y} paseasdu| sey sii aled 15U YL

*UoIIeWI0U) J3YLINS 10) £E
80U 0] JayaJ — padueys saey Sysi Aypinby pue
SIUBUSAOY 3Y) 30J2JAY} PUB SI3PUI| MBU YIMm
$7A4 Buunp pajueuyal sey Gnosg ayj ‘pold
UBND 34 ui Aipayew paseadow sey Bunaym
pue s3nuas woJ) mopyses se JeaA soud
3y} 0] pasedwod paseasoap sey ysu Aupinbn

‘suawaBuese dems aies 1534301 oJut Buuajua
JO 19UQ/1503 ayl Juuapisuod ajum ‘o} pasodxa
90 PINOYS SSIUISNG 3L} 1BY1 1G3P JO |34} a1 A0S OF
SI2PjOYRIBYS 33 Yum AjS0[2 SHIOM pue siseq Jendas
B UG XSM SIY 03 Ansodxa S} sJopuow dnouo syl

"sugIzenIaNy ates 153.4a3u| jo 3oedwy ay 0}
pasodxa aiojalay] 51 pue sBumoliog aley
Bunjeolq Jo sjaaa| Juedgiudis sey dnosd ayl ASU 1. Jsadu

*SPUNg JUSHAPNS aJe 33D
INsUR Y Sluawsnbaa Aupinby s31 paueluews sey
pue Ayapoe (euopesado nyg WoJy spuny |RIZUBISQNS

Bunesauad Aq Aupinby 53t paleuew sey dnoso ayL
7€ 01 1€ safed uo ainsopsip

ulaauoz 3uiod ay) 01 43j34 9Seald "anp
lley A3yy uaym suonedyqo Aed o) ajgejene
3 Jou ABw LySeD JBY3 Y514 Y3 St s Aipinbny

*$19PUB) |BLIFIXA YIM TZAJ U) JudwWipudie
Jueusn0> 3y} Jo uUed se pelenodau sem aym

ploysasty Aupinby wnwiuw e 3aaw 1snw dnois ayl ys1 Ajpinbn

Jeah jopd wouy ysi Jo uoeNQ

vole3mN uopduasaq $YS [EPURUY

€207 HOYVYW SZ GIAN3 G0I1Y3d ¥33IM 7S JHL HO4
{GINNILNOD) 1¥0d3Y J1DIALVYLS
Q3LINN SONITTOH INJWNIVLEILNI TYNOLLYNYILNI



ST

“DE J10U U1 JSYLNJ PASSNISIP §) JuswaIeuew ysii [eisuenily

"UORENUIIUOD JO Y51 3 Bunnpds Agasay) ‘sieuped
Bupqueq Juaiayip Jo Jaquinu B Yyim pansodap st ysed

51 JPDUI 3INPAJ 0} JapJ0 U s13))ddns Jo ssowosnd
mau Aue jo Buuods 1pasd pue swua} luawadedus
MaAa; 0} aded w ssadoud e sey dnolg ay)

*SWL193 JuaiAed |enjoesiuod s,dnolg
341 UIylm Aed 0] (e OYM S101GaP JO BulOUOW ISOP
S| aiayl "sdiysuonejds Suipueis Buoj sey dnolo ayl
wioym ypm ‘syuaBe Alied pay) eia sajes os|e aJe aJay|

"sa|es asay) o} payrene

§SH }pasy paywi} asojaiay) S| asay) pue ‘adejd anp
*Jedh Joud Supge) smoys Jo adueape Up s13%) JIAL3 40j Aed oym  uaYM ||y Ul sJUnowe Aed 01 3|qRUN 34 |IM
ay) wouy pagueyd JouU sey 3si JO [BA3] IYL algnd {esauald ay) o) e sajes 19320 Jo Ajuolew ayl  AJedsazuncd e eyl sl Yl 1 ysk JpaID ASH P31
Jeah soud wiody ysM JC uopsa uonefw uordussaq SH)SH |epueuld

£70Z HJOUVIA SZ J3AN3 GOI¥3d ¥I3M ZS IHL HO4
{Q3INNILNOD) LHOdIY JIDILVHIS
GILINIM SONIGIOH LNIANIVLIYILINT TYNOLLYNYILNI



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the importance of its environmental responsibilities, monitors its impact on the environment,
and designs and implements appropriate policies to minimise any damage that might be caused by the Group's

activities.

The Group seeks 1o reduce the environmental impact of its operations through responsible resource procurement
and consistently strives to eliminate waste with our supply chain partners. Specifically, we are driving efficient energy
{utilities) procurement, diverting alt of our waste from landfill and where possible, installing energy efficient systems
in our venues and reducing our dependence on environmentally unfriendly materials and consumables (including
goods fer resale). As an organization, our environmental impact is a key pillar of our overarching Corporate Social

Responsibility strategy.

in FY23, the Group Qperations department introduced a new Environmental Management System with support from
the Senior Leadership Team. The EMS aligns with the principles of ISO 14001 and enables a steering group to report
on, monitor and manage (with the support of other functions) the environmental impact of our UX venue operations.
The EMS has also empowered a new cehort of Environmental Champions to represent all of the functions across ATG
UK. The Champions meet every two months to discuss a wide variety of subjects, including successes, new initiatives,
challenges and opportunities for learning and development. With support from the Champions we hope to achieve
1SO 14001 accreditation in our FY24 and along with it we hope to introduce a new e-learning development programme
to help all ATG UK staff learn about our EMS and the wider impacts and challenges of climate breakdown across the

world.
Greenhouse Gas Reporting

The Group is required by the Companies Act 2006, Regulations 2013 to measure and reports its direct and indirect UK

greenhouse gas emissions.

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are from sources that are owned or controfled by the Group. Indirect greenhouse
gas emissions are from sources owned or controlled by other entities but are a consequence of the activities of the

Group.

The methodology used to calculate emissions is based on the Greenhouse Gas Protocol's corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard approach. The UK government conversion factor guidance {“DEFRA”) was used to calculate

emission factors.
Greenhouse gas reporting is split between three categories. The explanations for these are as follows;

Scope 1: Direct emissions controlled by the Group. This includes gas and oil used for heating as well as emissions from

company cars (both owned and teased).
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Scope 2: Indirect emissions exclusively composed of purchased electricity within the Group.

Scope 3: Indirect emissions which occur at sources which are not owned or controlied by the Group and which are

not classed as scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions from rental vehicles where the Group purchased the fuel.

Absolute UK carbon emissions Year ended 25 March 2023 Year ended 26 March 2022
{tonnes of COy
Kwh Tonnes of CO; Kwh Tonnes of CO;
Scope 1 8,491,743 1,556.70 10,087,916 1,857.82
Scope 2 14,279,719 2,826.83 10,905,975 2,315.34
Scope 3 64,908 57.10 50,311 10.96
22,836,370 4,440.63 21,044,202 4,184.12
UK carbon intensity 2023 2022
Tonnes of CO: per £'000 of revenue 0.01 0.01
Tonnes of CO; per employee 0.54 1.24
OUR PEOPLE
Number of employees at 25 March 2023 Women Men Undisclosed Total
Directors of the company - 4 - 4
Other senior management 3 69 - 100
Employees 4,415 3,447 354 8,216

Note that directors of the company shown above include only executive directors.

The Group complies with all relevant iegislation including those specifically targeted at preventing discrimination,
Such principles are embedded through the organisation by the requisite policies. The Group is committed to ensuring
the health, safety and weifare of its employees as far as is reasonably practicable. The Group seeks to ensure that

statutory duties are met at all times and that it operates effective health and safety management policies and

procedures.

The Group’s policy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils, meetings and company-
wide surveys, on matters likely to affect employees’ interests. information on matters of concern to employees is
given through a variety of communication methods which seek to achieve a common awareness on the part of all

employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group’s performance.

The Group has evolved its “Hospitality 101” training programme, focusing on Front of House staff when they join,
developing their skifls to improve customer experience, and further along the line, “Stages”™ programmes open to all
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managers, covering the key aspects of people management. The Group also runs several selective leadership
development programmes: a two-year “Rising Star” programme for emerging leaders, a one-year “Interval”
programme for experienced managers, as well as a Jeadership course for senior managers “Leading Lights.” In FY23,

we launched our eight cohart of Rising Stars, our third cohort of interval and our fourth Leading Lights class.

The Group continue to evolve its strategy and activities relating to Inclusion, Diversity and Equity and Access ('1DEA").
With active IDEA committees in each affiliate, training is available to staff and managers, empioyee network groups
have been launched, and policies are being reviewed and introduced as appropriate. We continue to support internal
engagement initiatives such as International Women's Day, Black History Month, Pride and Mental Health Awareness

week, with more people becoming involved in all geographies.

Social and Community Invoivement

The Group recognises that regional theatres, in the UK, USA and Germany, are rooted in the heart of their local

communities.

Many of the UK regional theatres have Creative Learning departments which take a leading role in contributing to the
social cohesion of their communities in partnership with charities, trusts and organisations nationwide, including
several local authorities and further education partners. Over the course of a year, Creative Learning can boast more

than 70,000 participants of all ages and abilities throughout the UK and 25,000 in the US,

FY23 marks S years of Creative Learning’s invigorated nationwide approach. During this period, we have increased
our capacity with more venues and a better team and have more than doubled the number of people we reach, Since

2019, aver 258,000 pecple in the UK have participated in ATG Creative Learning activities.

People of a wide variety of ages and abilities participate in the Group’s Creative Learning activities, providing access
to our venues as a valuable and leading resource of education and cultural engagement. Often inspired by the
productions at venues, these activities can include workshops with visiting companies, backstage tours and pre-show
talks, and also Youth Theatres, summer schoals and classes for adults. In addition to this, many regional venues are

used for several weeks a year by local amateur production companies.

Creative Learning is led by the flagship UK programme, which over the course of the last 15+ years have been
harnessing our venues, productions, and industry workfarce as a valuable and leading resource for cufturaf education.

UK teams continued their work through 4 key initiatives:

Creative Generation: Our commitment to the next generation through work with the education sector. in March
2023, we delivered the milestone moment, Creative Generation Day across our partfolio of US and UX venues. This
coliaborative effort saw venues swing open their doors to deliver a raft of careers-based activity to target schools, in
our global movement to nurture the next generation and showcase a career in the arts. Venue-led careers-focused
insight sessions included tours, talks, Q&A’s, as well as hands on masterclasses and workshops. Visiting productions

got on board to deliver activity led by company members from Demon Dentist and Mother Goose. The activity was
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captured in media, raising further awareness via socials to mark World Theatre Day. Centrally, we shared a montage

video summing up the day which was highlighted on ATG social media channels. On Linkedin alone, we have had
4,000 video views.

Co Create: Delivered nationwide with local nuance, teams work closely with their neighbor creative community in
support of their local cultural ecology. This programme seeks to address local community priorities, through a
collaborative approach to the production of activity. Ranging from professional small-scale productions with an
educational and audience development interest, as well as an opportunity for people of all ages and backgrounds to
perform in large scale community performances, festivals and showcases. The UK produced 37 live performances, to

a total audience of over 16,000.

Show Related: In FY23, UK teams worked in partnership with producers that programme our venues {ATG
Productions, SFP & Disney) to provide first time access to the live theatre going experience for over 13,000 new
audience members. Creative Learning driven audience development is supported by show-related activity, which is
open to ail, with specific energy driven towards targeting first time theatre goers or those who face barriers due to
race or sacio-economic background, This work furthers the ATG producer relationship in order to create an accessible,

diverse and inclusive theatre going culture for the future.

Talent & Workforce Development: We develop the workforce by providing viable futures for the industry
professionals of tomorrow through creating real jobs, internships, placements, education, masterciasses & training.
In the West End, we offered a paid technical training initiative thanks to funding from partners Landsec and Wates.
We are also delighted that our partnership with Get Into Theatre has received £100,000 funding from Arts Council
England. This ensures we will target our work more specifically to improve equal access to arts careers for Young
People and Emerging Artists from lower socio-economic, deaf or disabled, and Black and Asian ethnic backgrounds.
The ATG Academy develops the next generation of on-stage talent through youth theatres that provide young people
access to high quality learning from industry professionals. The ATG Academy focuses on developing skifls in voice,
dance and acting; offers a rare opportunity for young people to work with visiting companies thanks to our network
of producer contacts. Many Alumni go on to enter the industry, and we celebrate our latest success of Jamil Abassi
who left our Liverpool Empire Academy to pursue drama school training, graduating this year and going straight into

“Bake Off the Musical”,

For a further insight into the important work of Creative Learning & Community Partnerships, please refer to the ATG

CLCP 2023 Annual Review Brochure.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strategic Report has been prepared solely to provide information to shareholders to assess how the directors
have performed their duty to promote the success of the Group. The report contains certain forward-looking
statements, which are made by the directors in good faith based on the information available to them at the time
that the report was signed but are subject to the inherent uncertainties underlying any forward-looking information

and as such should be treated with caution.
APPROVAL

This report was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 July 2023 and signed on its behalf

i

John Oldcorn

by:

Director
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$172 STATEMENT

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE COF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172(1) COMPANIES ACT 2006

The Board of Directors of international Entertainment Holdings Limited (“IEH"} consider, both individually and
together, that they have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success
of the Company for the benefit of its stakeholders as a whole (having regard to the stakeholders and matters set out

in section 172(1) (a—f) of the Act) in the decisions taken during the period ended 25 March 2023.

$172(1) A “The likely consequence of any decision in the long term”
The Directors have taken the decision they believe best supports IEH's strategic ambitions. More discussion can be
found below, Including decisions that focus on the Group’s employees, audiences, content suppliers, and partners

and their strategic impact on the Group’s iong-term strategy.

$172(1) B “The interest of the company’s employees”
The Directors recognise that IEH employees are fundamental and core to our business and the delivery of our strategic

ambitions, More information can be found under ‘Our People’ on page 17.

$172(1) € “The need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others”
|EH stakeholders are customers, producers, suppliers, employees, shareholders and lenders, and the Board recognises
the need to regularly review the identity of its stakeholders as it makes decislons. The Board promotes accountability

and transparency with all stakeholders.

The Company’s fundamental belief in promoting the public good is demonstrated and supported by our Senior

Leadership’s active engagement across industry bodies and our stakeholder community.

The Group has introduced customer engagement surveys which will determine the Net Promoter Score (NPS) of the
Group. NPS performance is being reported to the Board on a monthly basis. The findings are being used to improve

customer engagement with knowledge being shared across all of our business.

An annual employee ‘Company Day' delivered in London provides a briefing on the Company’s performance and
allews individuats to raise questions and concerns. The Group monitors its employees’ commitment to its guiding
framework by asking members of senior management to submit an annual declaration confirming whether they have
complied with the Group's Code of Conduct. If any employee wishes to highlight any potential breaches to the Code
of Conduct, they can contact the independent whistleblowing services provider and a formal investigation follows
with anonymous reporting to the Audit Committee. Annual employee engagement surveys are performed to highlight

areas requiring improvement in communication of the Group’s purpose.
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§172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
The Board considers the results of all employee engagement surveys a good barometer of the workforce's confidence

in the Group’s strategic direction, optimism for the future and career opportunities.

The Group assess the Gender Pay Reporting annually and publishes it externally. The additional analysis required to
conduct this reporting has highlighted some areas in which the Group needs to improve. The Group wetcomes these

changes as it seeks to constantly improve in its engagement with all stakeholders.

$172{1) D “The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment”
The Directors recognise the importance of its environmental responsibilities. More details can be found under

‘Environmental matters’ on page 16.

$172(1) E “The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct”
{EH has zero tolerance for modern siavery, bribery and other forms of corruption. We implement and enforce effective
systems 1o counter modern slavery, bribery and corruption and have internal policies in place to educate our

employees about how to recognise and deat with these issues so as to ensure compliance with laws.

We remain committed to combating modern slavery, bribery and corruption by:
- Auditing our supply chains;
- Training our staff to recognise these issues;

- Manitaring potential risk acrass our business.

We have a dedicated whistleblowing service for our employees to report misconduct or unethical practices and have
a policy which clearly sets out how members of staff can raise any toncerns which they may have.

Details of our code of conduct and modern slavery can be found on the ATG website:
https://www.atg.co.uk/corporate-information

https://www atg.co.uk/atg-modern-siavery-and-human-trafficking-staternent

5$172{1) F “The need to act fairly as between members of the company”
At every Board meeting the Directors review, with the management team, the progress against strategic priorities

and the changing shape of the business portfolio.

This collaborative approach by the Board, together with the Board’s approval of the company strategy, helps it to
promote the long-term success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of what it considers to
be in the best interest of the long-term financial success of the company and its stakeholders, including shareholders,

employees, the community and environment, our suppliers and customers.
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$172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL DECISIONS — ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS

As part of the decision making process for the Board, it continues to have regard for the impact of its decisions on the
Group’s stakeholders as required under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, The Board takes its responsibility

towards stakeholders seriously and strives to build and maintain productive relationships with each of them.
We outline here how we engage with our stakeholders to drive outcomes.
1. Employees

The Group’s long-term success is predicated on the commitment and contribution of its workforce. Engagement with

our employees is essential to meet our strategic goals.

The results from our last Employee Engagement survey benchmarked us a "Great Place to Work” in all 3 territories,

We will be undertaking a similar survey in 2023 to continue to track our performance and progress. .

As mentioned above, we have restarted and built upon our Learning & Development offering and continue to refine
the compliance and onboarding online training for our disparate workforce. For support and office staff, the Group
has continued to review the hybrid working policy introduced during FY22. The Group continues to develop its efforts
relating to Inclusion, Diversity and Equity and Access ('IDEA’) through networks designed to support employees and

invest in employees through its leadership development training programs.

2. Audiences

Audiences are central to the success of the Group, therefore it is essential to understand their changing requirements

and implement initiatives to consistently improve the customer experience.

The Group tracks customers’ scores for their ticketing purchases at atgtickets.com using Trust Pilot in the UK, this was
4.7 out of 5 in the year. The Group also sends post visit engagement surveys to all UK customers, which determines
the Net Promoter Score (NPS), a universally recognized customer loyalty and satisfaction measurement tool, and is
reported monthly. For FY23 in the UK this was 60 (considered excellent by Qualtrics, who measure customer
experience performance far 18,000 brands worldwide). The US and Germany are being rolled out. The findings are

used to improve customer engagement, with knowledge being shared across the business.
The Group maintains its customer service technologies and call centres.
3. Suppliers

The Group has a number of supplier contracts which are an important part of our business in relation to the delivery
of capability across our venue operations, technology platforms, ticketing capability and IT infrastructure.

The Group engages with its supply chain through a variety of methods:
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$172 STATEMENT {CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL DECISIONS — ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

3. Suppliers {Continued)

The technology team has a dedicated IT Supplier Manager as part of their specialist Procurement team. Responsible

for end-to-end supplier management, including selection, mobilization, performance management and offboarding.

The central procurement function supports key national and strategic group contracts across goods not for resale
service lines. They also manage the suppliers responsible for the UK distribution of F&B and all key product contracts.
With regards to goods for resale they are responsible for end-to-end supplier management. The day-ta-day
management of our key suppliers is through our Supplier Relationship Management (SRM} framework which has a
tier system with strategic capabilities and partnerships critical to business functions labelled Tier 1 or 2, Tier 3 is lacally
specific requirements of low value and capability. The central procurement team working with other Group
Operations departments focuses on Tier 1 and 2 suppliers providing Gevernance & Oversight, standardised reporting

of KPIs/SLAs, supplier categorisation and scorecard reporting.

The Group recognises the value of its suppiy chain partners and the collaborative approach the Group has taken with
its key suppliers allowed the Group to respond robustly to the supply chain disruption experienced as a result of post-

pandemic demand, energy pricing, impact of the Ukraine invasion and global inflation and reduced supplier capacity.
4. Communities and the Environment

The Group understands that it has an impact on communities and we engage with them in a number of different ways
including: Yocal outreach programmes, Creative Learning and Community Partnerships amongst others. As weli as
having a Creative Learning & Community Partnerships function at key venues, each of our venues also has its own
initiatives for community engagement. Due to our geographic spread across the regions of the UK, North America and
Germany, the Group is able to respond to the specific needs and opportunities in each area. Groupwide collaborative
efforts are undertaken to support key initiatives that address workforce development, and audience development, in

support of ATG's CSR objectives.

We strive to reduce the environmental impact of our operations, and those of our supply chain partners, through the
responsible sourcing of resgurces. Key initiatives include driving sustainable energy procurement, installing more

energy efficient systems in our venues wherever possible, and diverting all waste from landfifi.
$5. Sharehoiders

The Group is in regular dialogue with its shareholders. The Group’s shareholders are represented on the Board and

meet regularly throughout the year to discuss the key decisions to be made by the Group.
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5172 STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL DECISIONS — ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

S. Shareholders (Continued)

The ciose working relationship with the Group’s shareholders has enabled the business to focus on key strategic
objectives which have been set by the Board and focus on long-term opportunities that meet the requirements of the

shareholders.
6. Financial Institutions

The Group actively engages and regularly meets with is partner banks. There are quarterly presentations of the
Group's performance and periodic reporting and presentations of the Group’s budget. This has enabled the Group to
forge strong relations with the Group’s lenders providing them with an in-depth understanding of the Group's

business and its performance.
PRINCIPAL DECISIONS MADE

We outline here some of the principal decisions made by the Group and how the directors have considered various

stakeholders.
1. Investment in ticketing digital capabilities to drive ticket sales and ticketing market share

As a customer facing business it is important to continue to evolve and to improve the customer experience. The
members of the Board were satisfied that further development and the roll-out of the digital ticketing platform to the
US was an important step for the Company to take to improve the user experience for our customers and the

profitability of the business.

2.  investment in building CAPEX

Buiiding capex has returned to business as usual regarding its funding and management and delivery capability. That
said construction inflation and global construction demand outweighing supply (be it materials or contractor
availabitity) has been a management challenge particularly in the UK and USA. Investment continues in our 3 key
categories, Maintenance (those critical for compliant business operations), Improve (those projects critical to improve
business continuity and competitiveness) and growth projects (those that drive a clear ROI) in accordance with our

capex planning process and technical due diligence.
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$172 STATEMENT [CONTINUED)
PRINCIPAL DECISIONS MADE {CONTINUED)

3. Investing in diversity and Inclusion

The Board has considered it key to continue to focus on diversity and inclusion both on and off the stage. Having taken
into account previous work undertaken by the Diversity Working Group, the Board has considered it important to
expand upon the initiatives already undertaken by keeping active IDEA committees in each affiliate and implementing
employee network groups. Improving the diversity of voices within the Group will enhance the longer-term success

of the Group as a whole, and pclicies are constantly reviewed and introduced as appropriate to promote this goal.
4. Customer Data Platform

Understanding our audience is essential for ATG to remain relevant to our audiences and personal in our
communications. Over the past few years, the Group has invested in a group wide customer data platform to
understand our audience at a deeper level. Over time, this platform will enable us to understand audience
transactiona!, demographic, attitudinal and behaviouratl trends in order to better meet their needs. The Single
Customer View from the Customer Data Platform identifies unigue customers and households that feed reports used
by our venues to show customer information by show and venue to allow analysis and improved marketing. Alongside
the Single Customer View, the Customer Data Platform provides marketing technology to improve our customer
communication, make us more efficient, more relevant and timely. An early success in this programme has been the
imp!ementation of Abandoned Basket emails to opted in customers that have commenced across our venues, On 30
September 2022, the Customer Data Platform went live in all UK venues and 3 US venues and is being rolled out across

the other US venues, with the remaining venues moving onto the platform by September 2023.

There are several initiatives in place for FY24 to increase customer frequency and deliver more sales from our

Customer Relationship Management programme.
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Anthony Ball, Non-Executive Director

Anthony Ball served as Chalrman of International Entertainment Holdings Limited from December 2016 to April 2021
and remains on the board as a non-executive director. He has been a senior advisor of Providence Equity Partners
cince 2012, He has had 4 lung and successtul career in the media and entertainment industries in the UK and
internationally, as chairman of Kabel Deutschland from 2005 to 2013 and as CEOQ of BSkyB, the largest pay-TV
broadcaster in Europe. Prior to this, he was the CEO of the News Corporation/Liberty Media joint venture, Fox/Liberty
Networks, which included the FX Networks, Fox Sports Net and over 20 regional sports channets throughout the U.5.
Anthony is chairman of Bité Group and chairman of the supervisary board of Airties Group SAS. He is also a director
of Masmdvil 5.A. and Banco Sabadeli 5.A. He previously served as a nen-executive director at 8T Group Pic. Anthony
received an MBA from Kingston University and has been awarded honorary doctorates from both Middlesex

University and Kingston University.
Mark Cornell, Chief Executive Officer

Mark Cornell was appointed Group CEO of the Ambassador Theatre Group in May 2016. Prior to this he was Managing
Director of Sotheby’s Europe and preceding that, spent 10 years at LVMH, including President and Chief Executive
Officer of Moet Hennessy USA and Chief Executive Officer of Krug Champagne. Mark has vast experience in managing
large organisations, as well as successfully leading consumer-orientated brands in the UK, Europe and the USA. Mark

holds a Post Grad Marketing Diploma from the Chartered Institute of Marketing and a Master Of Business

Administration {MBA) From IMBD, Switzerland.

Stephen Evans, Non-Executive Director, Silver Lake Partners

Stephen Evans joined Silver Lake in 2008 and is a Managing Director. Mr. Evans serves on the board of Ambassador
Theatre Group (ATG), Australian Professional Leagues (APL}, Endeavor, Learfield, Michael Cassel Group, TEG, and
Thrasio. He is a member of the audit committee of City Football Group and previously served on the boards of
Ancestry.com and Serena Software, Inc. Prior to joining Silver Lake, Mr. Evans was a Principal at Cognetas, a pan-
European private equity firm. Previously, Mr. Evans spent five years at Bain & Company, based both in Europe and
the U.S., including two years in Bain's private equity group. He is a member of the executive board of the EB Research
Foundation, which is dedicated to finding a cure for Epidermolysis Bullosa, a rare children’s disease. Mr. Evans holds

a M.A, and a M.Phil from Cambridge University and a M.B.A. from Harvard Business School.

Jonathan M. Nelson, Executive Chairman, Providence Equity Partners

Mr. Nelson was appointed Chairman of International Entertainment Holdings Limited in April 2021. Mr. Nelson is
executive chairman and founder of Providence Equity Partners, a leading private equity firm focused on growth-
oriented media, communications, edycation and technology companies throughout North America and Europe. The
firm manages private equity funds with $31 billion in commitments and has invested in more than 170 companies
globally since its inception. Mr. Nelson serves on the board of directors of Ambassador Theatre Group and The
Chernin Group. He has also served as a director of numerous other Providence portfolio companies, including Bresnan
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Comumunications, Eircom plc, Hulu, Language Line, MetroNet [now AT&T Canada), MLS Media, Univision, VoiceStream
Wireless (now T-Mobile US), Warner Music Group, Western Wireless Corporation {now AT&T Corp.} and Yankees
Entertainment and Sports Network (YES).

Mr. Nelson has been a private equity investor for 38 years. He founded Providence in 1989. Previously, he was a
managing director of Narragansett Capital, Inc. which he joined in 1983. At Narragansett Capital, Mr. Nelson
specialised in private equity investments in media. Mr. Nelson received a Master of Business Administration from the
Harvard Business School in 1983 and a Bachelor of Arts from Brown University in 1977. He is a trustee of Brown
University, The Rockefelier University and Institute for Advanced Study. He is a member of the Board of Dean’s

Advisors at Harvard Business School.

John Oldcorn, Chief Financial Officer

John Oidcorn was appointed as CFO of international Entertainment Holdings Limited on 1 July 2021. Prior to this Jjohn
spent three years as the Group CFO of Argent Foods, a E750m turnover conglomerate of food-related husiness. At
Argent he oversaw relaticnships with lenders and other key stakeholders; played a key role in the group navigating
successfully through the pandemic; and led four debt raises / refinancings, as well as significant Corporate and M&A
activity. Prior to joining Argent in 2018, john spent 25 years working in professional practice with Arthur Andersen,
Deloitte and, latterly, KPMG, for the last 16 years as a partner. He co-led the creation and rapid growth of a dedicated,
multi-disciplinary, private equity practice serving global PE clients and their portfolic companies across Eurape,

typically in a fast-paced M&A environment.

George Oshorne, Non-Executive Director

George Oshorne joined the board of IEH as a non-executive director in Aprit 2021. He is a partner at Robey Warshaw
LLP. Prior to his current rales, George was an MP for sixteen years, the Chancetltor of the Exchequer (2010-2016) and
First Secretary of State {2015-2016), and edited the London Evening Standard from 2017-2020. George is chair of the
not-for-profit Northern Powerhouse Partnership and a Lecturer at Stanford University, California. In 2016 he was

made a Companion of Honour by Her Majesty the Queen.
Robert Sudo, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Rebert Sudo is @ managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is also a director of Bité, Closer Still Media,
HSE24, MasMovil and LaCentrale. Prior to joining Providence Equity Partners in 2004, Robert worked as an analyst for
Goldman Sachs in mergers and acgquisitions and corporate finance. He received a Diploma in Business Administration

from HHL Leipzig Graduate Schoof of Management,
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Andrew Tisdale, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Andrew Tisdale is a Senior Managing Director and Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Partners. He is also a
Director of Chime Communication, CloserStill Media, HSE24, Superstruct and Node4. Prior to joining Providence
Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew was global co-head of the media and communications group and a member of
Morgan Stanley's management committee for investment banking. Andrew received a Master of Business
Administration from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and a Bachelor of Arts from Vanderbiit University.
He currently serves on the Space Innovation Council at the California Institute of Technology and, the Board of

Advisors for the Yale School of Drama, and Vanderbilt University’s College of Arts and Sciences.

Michaél Vervisch, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Michaél Vervisch is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is aiso a director of Noded. Mr. Vervisch
originally joined Providence in 2014. In the past he worked as a principal at Clayton Dubilier & Rice, as an associate
director at IK Investment Partners and as an associate at McKinsey & Company, Mr. Vervisch received a Master of
Business Administration from Harvard Business School and holds a Master of Science in Electrical Engineering and a

Master of Science in Applied Economics from the Katholieke Universiteit Leuven in Belgium.

Maria Jodo Barges, Non-Executive Director, Providence Equity Partners

Maria Jo3o Borges is a Vice President at Providence Equity Partners. Prior to joining Providence in 2019, Maria Jo3o
worked as an analyst in the investment banking group at J.P. Morgan in London. Marla Jodo received a Master of

Science in International Finance from HEC Paris and a Bachelar of Science in Economics from Nova School of Business

and Economics in Lisbon.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended 25 March
2023. The directors consider the annual report and financial statements to comply substantially with all aspects of

the “Guidelines for Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity”.
DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the period and to the date of signing the financial statements {except as noted)

were:

Anthony Ball
Mark Cornell
Stephen Evans
Jonathan Nelson
John Oldcorn
George Osborne
Robert Sudo
Andrew Tisdale

Michaél Vervisch

Till Van Dorp Resigned 22 fuly 2022
David Leigh Resigned 4 January 2023
Maria lodo Borgers Appointed 2 February 2023

The biographies of the current directors are presented on pages 27 to 29.

The Group is majarity owned by Providence Equity Partners through its investment funds, Providence Equity Partners
VII-A LP, Providence VIl Global Holdings LP, and Providence Equity Partners (Midsummer) LP. Providence Equity
Partners is a global alternative investment firm established in 1989 focused on education, media, communications,
and information investments. The firm’s private equity platform specialises in sector-focused buyout transactions and

growth capital investments. Providence Equity Partners made its investment in the Group through {E Holdco S.a.r.l.

In June 2021, Silver Lake Partners V Cayman, L.p., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership acquired 18.8%
shares in 1€ Holdco 5.a.1.1, through its wholly owned subsidiary Amplify Capital investment Pte. Ltd. Providence Equity
Partners remains the majority owner of IE Holdco 5.a.r.\., which is the beneficial owner of IE Luxce S.a.r.l., which holds

100% ownership of international Entertainment Holdings Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made

during the period and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit for the period after taxation amounted to £63.3m (2022: loss of £22.7m).

No dividends have been pald during the current period (2022: £Nil). No dividends are proposed in respect to the

current period
GOING CONCERN BASIS

As of the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group's trading experienced a significant reduction in
the impact of COVID-19, indicating a gradual recovery from FY22, when venues were closed for half of the fiscal period.
Following the re-opening of our venues in 2021, we have experienced increased ticket sales and improved customer
confidence with occupancy levels increasing significantly. The Going Concern assessment has been performed

considering the Group’s performance post year-end.

The Directors have considered the cash generation ability of each geography in their Going Concern assessment,

considering business and industry risks as reflected in key judgements within the cash flows and discount rate applied.

Sensitivities have been considered to reflect different scenarios of trading outcomes in the months following the date
of the approval of these financial statements. This is done to identify risks to liquidity and covenant compiliance and
enable management to formulate appropriate and timely mitigation strategies. These sensitivities include severe, but

plausible, downside scenarios. The stress tests applied include:

» Closing one of our largest and most profitable shows in December 2023, assuming unforeseen circumstances.
* A newly obtained theatre (in FY24) on Broadway being dark for 6 months.

« The impact of the cost-of-living crisis worsening, leading to softer demand and lower occupancy.

Management have also performed a break test on going concern, assuming all of the downside sensitivities described
above occur simultaneously. Management considers this scenario to be severe but implausible. Even in this scenario,

the Company remains covenant compliant.

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group has net current liabilities of £314.4m (FY22:
£162.1m} and net assets of £116.3m (FY22: £56.9m) at the period-end date. Net current liabilities include advanced
ticket sales of £187.7m (FY22: £190.4m). These reprasent ticket sales for shows that have yet to mature, with a portion
of this amount due to flow to the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales, the Group has liabilities due within one year

of £334.4m (FY22: £197.5m) which exceed current assets of £207.7m (FY22: £225.9m).
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The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts, in its bank accounts of £114.7m as at the
reporting date. Until recently discontinued owing to the Group’s improved liguidity outlook, a robust 13 week cash
flow forecasting process was in place, most recently covering the period to 20 May 2023, in addition to a longer term

monthly cash flow forecast covering the period to March 2025.

Based on these forecasts and other factors which may impact the Group’s future liquidity position, the Directors have
concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. The reasons for this are

as follows:

= At the March 2023 balance sheet date, the Group held £295.7m of committed facilities, with a £68m RCF
available and undrawn (2022: £70m RCF undrawn), which were subject to net leverage and liquidity
covenants. There was also an Equity Commitment of £25m available and undrawn from the shareholders.

= Subsequent to the March 2023 balance sheet date, the Group has refinanced these committed facilities and
is currently £973.9m drawn together with a $100m Loan Note repayable. There is a further $195m of term
debt available to draw {$95m revolving credit facility and $100m capex facility), also subject to a feverage
covenant.

* There is a reduced risk of default on the net leverage covenant, due to provisions within the facilities that
aliow for adjustments to the net leverage covenant whilst theatres are:

o closed by governments or regulatory bodies due to COVID-19; and

o for an agreed ramp up period post re-opening.

Adequate liquidity is in place for the next 12 months based on the foreseeable scenarias for theatres. The Board's
confidence in the Group’s forecasts, its ability to manage liquidity requirements, the continued support of our
shareholders, and the long term potential of the business forms the basis of our preparation of the financial

statements.
MATTERS COVERED IN THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certain matters {post balance sheet events, future developments, principal risks and uncertainties and employee

matters) are discussed within the Strategic Report and incorporated into the Directors' Report by reference.
AUDITORS
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

- so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are

unaware; and

- the director has taken ali the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that

information.
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This confirmation is given and should be inlerpreted in accordance with the pravisions of s418 of the Companies Act

2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditors.
Statemenl uf directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Report and Financial Statements and the financial statements in

accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the group and the company financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted

international accounting standards.

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:
*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject to any

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
*« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

group and company will continue in business,

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable

steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the group’s and company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act

2006.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements {continued)
Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the directors’ report is approved:

= so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group’s and company’s
auditors are unaware; and

s they have taken all the steps that they ought 1o have taken as a director in order to maks themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group’s and company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 28 july 2023 and is signed on its behalf by:

St

John Oldcorn

Director
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Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, International Entertainment Holdings Limited’s group financial statements and company financial
statements (the “financial statements”):

s pgive a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 25 March 2023 and of the
group's profit and the group’s cash flows for the 52 week period then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report and Financial Statements (the “Annual Report”),
which comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 25 March 2023; the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity
and Consolidated Statement of Cashfiows far the period then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {“ISAs (UK)"} and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’'s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised

for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
group's and the company’s ability to continue a5 3 going conerr.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
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knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a
material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. if, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report
and Directors’ Report for the period ended 25 March 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

in light of the knewledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment cbtained in the course
of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framewark
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control
as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financiaf statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or 1o cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
15As (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principat risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to corporation tax legisiation in the territories in which the Group operates, and we
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also
censidered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies
Act 2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and apportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements ({including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to
inapprogpriate journal entries and/or management exercising bias in accounting estimates that could result in the
overstatement of EBITDA. Audit pracedures performed by the engagement team included:
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Evaluatinn of management's controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities

Review of board meeting minutes, and where applicable, correspondence with relevant regulatory authorities
Incorporating elements of unpredictability into the audit procedures performed

Enquiries of the directors and management throughout the year as well as at year end to identify any instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations including consideration of known or suspected instances of fraud
Meeting with group head of tax to confirm any known instances of non-compliance with tax legisiation
identifying and testing unusual journal entries, in particular journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations, or posted by members of senior management with a financial reporting oversight role

s Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in sighificant accounting estimates, including the
disclosure of such matters in the financial statements

There are inherent imitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through cellusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have hot been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returps.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

J PR

Andrew Latham (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Southampton

28 july 2023
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52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
Note 25 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000
Revenue 5 705,020 320,970
Cost of sales {286,932) {135,459}
Gross profit 418,088 185,511
Administrative expenses {317,848) {226,097}
Other income 6 15,629 57,534
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 13 4,630 2,386
Operating profit 6 120,499 19,334
Finance income 9 4,752 2,789
Finance costs 10 {46,328) (50,720)
Profit / (loss) before tax 78,923 (28,597)
Taxation 11 (15,588) 5,860
Profit / (loss) for the period 63,335 {22,737)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 63,304 {23,083}
Non—controlliggfinterest 31 346
Comprehensive intome
Profit / {loss) for the period 63,335 {22,737)
ftems that may be reclossified subsequently to profit
or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign {4,181) 3,627
operations
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 191 266
_obligations
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the 59,345 {18,844}
period
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 59,314 {19,190)
Non-controlling interests 31 346
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the 59,345 (18,844}

period

All activity relates to continuing operations.

There are no material differences between the losses for the periods disclosed above and their historical cost

equivalents. The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial statements,

38



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

Consolidated Company
25March 26 March 25 March 26 March
Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
investments 12 14,395 574 413,835 413,835
Interests in associates and joint ventures 13 7,609 3,369 - -
Goodwill 14 422,700 400,683 - -
Intangible assets 14 28,605 25,438 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 599,772 538,556 - -
Deferred tax assets 24 27,566 30,732 - -
Non-current trade and other receivables 18 18,505 27,027 - -
Non-current assets 1,119,152 1,026,379 413,835 413,835
Inventories i6 1,894 1,560 - -
Investments in shows 17 3,005 2,669 - -
Trade and other receivables i8 76,883 75,139 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 19 125,936 146,513 1 -
Current assets 207,718 225,881 1 -
Total assets 1,326,870 1,252,260 413,836 413,835
Trade and other payables 20 377,294 328,430 13,710 12,952
Corporation tax payable 7,744 - - -
Borrowings 21 105,988 30,325 - -
Obligations under finance leases 22 14,963 10,012 - -
Provisions 23 16,083 19,174 - -
Current liabilities 522,072 387,941 13,710 12,952
Net current (liabilities)/assets (314,354} (162,060} {13,709) {12,952}
Borrowings 21 453,129 603,541 - -
Obligations under finance leases 22 198,073 168,198 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 24 37,333 35,662 - -
Non-current liabilities 688,535 807,401 - -
Total liabilities 1,210,607 1,195,342 13,710 12,952
Net assats 116,263 56,918 400,126 400,883
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

Consolidated Company
25 March 26 March 25 March 26 March
Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Share capital 25 415 414 414 414
Share premium account 402,522 462,522 402,522 402,522
Translation reserve 26,437 30,618 - -
Accumulated losses {313,487) (376,982} {2,810) {2,053)
Non-controlling interest 377 346 - -
Total equity 116,263 56,918 400,126 400,883

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The loss for the year dealt with in the financiat

statements of the Company was £0.8m {2022: £2.1m).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 28 july 2023. They were

signed on its behatf by:

Wr—

John Oldcorn
Registered Number 08769976

Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

Consolidated:
Share Non-
Share premium Translation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve losses Total Interest Total equity
£7000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 27 March 2021 414 402,522 26,991 {354,164} 75,763 - 75,763
Loss for the period - - - {23,084) {23,084} 346 {22,738)
Other comprehensive income for - - 3,627 266 3,893 - 3,893
the period
Total comprehensive income for
the period - - 3,627 {22,818) (19,191) 346 {18,845)
Balance at 26 March 2022 414 402,522 30,618 {376,982) 56,572 346 56,918
Profit for the period - - - 63,304 63,304 31 63,335
Other comprehensive
{expenses)/income for the period ) ) (4,181) 191 3,990) l (3,990)
Total comprehensive income for
the period - - {4,181) 63,495 59,314 31 59,345
Balance at 25 March 2023 414 402,522 26,437 (313,487) 315,886 377 116,263
Company:
Share
premium  Accumulated
Share capital account losses Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Balance at 27 March 2021 414 402,522 - 402,936
Income/(expense} for the period - - (2,053) {2,053}
Balance at 26 March 2022 414 402,522 (2,053} 400,883
Loss for the period - - {757) (757)
Balance at 25 March 2023 414 402,522 (2,810} 400,126
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOUIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

52 week 52 week

period ended period ended

Note 25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Net cash generated from operating activities 26 175,939 141,981
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (49,665} (29,838
Purchases of intangible assets 14 (8,263} (2,087]
Net investment in shows {(337) {2,040}
Cash acquired 3,250 {55,767)
Net cash used in investing activities {55,015) (89,732)
Loans {given)/raised 2,924 11,372
Repayment of bank borrowings {68,000) {69,370]
Repayment of other borrowings (20,447) -
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (23,142) (12,124)
Interest received 4,629 42
interest paid (42,943) {20,681)
Net cash used in financing activities {146,979) {90,761)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (26,055%) (38,512)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 146,513 185,432
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {26,055) (38,512)
Foreign exchange gain/{loss) on cash 5,478 {407)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 19 125,936 146,513

No Company Statement of Cash Flows has been presented.

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

1. General information

international Entertainment Holdings Limited (the “Group”) is a private Company limited by shares, incorporated
in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the
registered nffice is 72 Welbeck Street, Londun, W1G 0OAY, United Kingdom.

The principal of the Company and its subsidiaries {the Group} and the nature of the Group’s operations are set out

in the strategic report on pages 2 to 26.

These financial statements are presented in pounds Sterling because that is the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the group operates.
2. Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments to IFiSs that are mandatorily effective for the current period

in the current year, the Group has applied amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board {IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2022.
Amendments to IFRS adopted in the current year include:

- Amendments to IFRS 3 — Reference to the Conceptual Framework

- Amendments to 1AS 16 — Property, Piant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended Use
- Amendments to 1AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 — 2020 {IFRS 1, JFRS 9, JFRS 16, 1AS 41)

- Amendments to 1AS 1 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- Amendments to IAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

- Amendments to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities

The adoption of these amendments in the year did not have a material impact on the financial statements.
New and revised IFRSs in Issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective;

- Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of liabilities as Current or Non-Current
- Amendments to IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows
- Amendments to iIFRS 7 — Financial Instruments: Disclosures

- Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted internationat accounting standards

{International Financial Reporting Standards).

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act 2005 not
to present its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The loss for the year dealt with in the

financial statements of the Company was £0.8m {2022: £2.im).

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical

cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair vaiue of an asset or a fiability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in |AS 2

or value in use in 1AS 36.
3.2 Operating resuits

The operating results include transactions up to and including the Saturday on or preceding 31 March of each

period.
3.3 Basis of consolidation

The consofidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controtled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the Company has the power over the investee, is
exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its

power to affect its returns.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are induded in the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to

control the subsidiary.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3.  Summary of significant accounting policles {Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the

members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Nuni-tontroling Interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those interests
of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Subsequent 10 acquisition,
the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the

non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

in FY23, non-controlling interest represents 74% ownership interest by other investors in SFP Dreams Limited
(Dreamgirls). The Group indirectly holds 26% of the shares in Dreamgiris, however is deemed to control the entity
as it has unilateral decision making power. As a result, we consolidate Dreamgirls at 100%, with 74% reflected as

non-controlling interest.
3.4 Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a

business combination is measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)

over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and inclurded as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during a
maximum period which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date. Where changes occur to contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or liability, that
do not qualify as measurement period adjustments, the contingent consideration is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. To the extent that the terms
of contingent consideration arrangements include service conditions, consideration is treated as a cost of

employment and is recognised over the period to which the service conditions relate.

Deferred cansideration is measured applying the time value of money, where the purchase price of an entity is paid
ininstalments. Upfront payments either invalve equity in the purchaser or the commitment to pay cash when targets
are achieved, The portion of the purchase price that is deferred is recognised as a liability in the Statement of

Financial Position, at the present value of the future cash flows.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

The Group reports provisional amounts until the measurement period is completed.
3.5 Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are valued at cost less provision for impairment.

3.6 Associates and joint arrangements

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of

the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. foint controt is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities (i.e. activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement) require the unanimous consent of

the parties sharing control. Joint arrangements are classified inte two types - joint operations and joint ventures.

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint
operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is
a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint ventures) have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. The type of joint arrangement is assessed by considering its rights and
obligations, by considering the structure and iegal form of the arrangement, the contractual terms agreed to by the

parties to the arrangement and, when relevant, other facts and circumstances.

The classification of associates and joint arrangements depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each

producer and investor, rather than the legal structure of the associate or joint arrangement.

The assets and liabilities (and related revenues and expenses) of joint operations are recognised in proportion to the

interest in the arrangement.

The resuits and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, aninvestment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate {which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or

made payments on behalf of the associate.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

1.6 Associates and joint arrangements {continued)

wWhere the year end of productions joint arrangement entities differs from that of the Group but is within three
months, management analyses Lire activity between the joint arrangement’s reporting date and the Group’s; any

material movements in the accounts would be reflected in the Group financia! statements. Far joint arrangements

where the year end differs by greater than 3 months, management obtains interim financial statements and includes

results for the reporting period that aligns to the Group’s.
3.7 Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annuaily.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)

expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which

the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment fevel.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each

asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

3.8 Impairment of non-current assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. Goodwill is reviewed

for impairment at least anaually.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwiil is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units or group

of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination.

An impairment loss Is recognised if the carrying amount of the asset under consideration exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit pro-
rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}

3.9 Iovestments in shows and co-praoduction arrangements

Investments in shows are stated at cost less amounts distributed to date, adjusted for the Group’s share of profit

or loss of the production and provisions for any amounts which the directors do not believe are recoverable.

Production arrangements are reviewed on a production-by-production basis and treated based on the

principies outlined above as either a subsidiary, an associate, joint venture or joint operation.
3.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and accumulated impairments. Depreciation is
provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, on a straight-fine

basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 40 to 50 years
Leasehold property Shorter of leasehold term and useful life of 40 to S0 years
Fixtures and fittings 4 to 10 years, or over the period to the end of the [ease of the theatre if

this is shorter
IT Equipment 3to 5vyears
No depreciation is applied to the cost of assets in the course of construction. Freehold land is not depreciated.
3.11 Intangible assets

intangible assets all have finite lives and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumnulated
impairment losses. Amartisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and is

recognised in the administrative expenses line item.

The amortisation period for software is 4 years. The estimated life of other intangible assets is considered on an

asset-by-asset basis and is up to 10 years.
3.12 Inventory

Inventory is valued on a first in, first out basis at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due

allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)

3.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financiat liabilities,
ather than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), are added to, or
deducted from, the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and escrow-type accounts. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component

of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of cash flows.

Trade receivables and accrued income

Trade receivables and accrued income are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Since trade receivables and accrued income are typically
due within one year and the effect of any effective interest is immaterial, this equates to initial carrying value less

any impairment.
Borrowings

Loans and Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. They are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocated
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

When modifications of the terms of a debt arrangement occurs, gualitative and quantitative tests are performed
to determine whether the modification is substantial or non-substantial. The Group applies ‘10% test’ per iFRS 9 to
determine if the modification is substantial or not. If the change in the net present value of the debt on date of
modification is less than 10%, the modification is considered non-substantial. Where debt modifications are
substantial, the previous borrowing is derecognised and the new debt measured as described above. Where debt

madifications are non-substantial, a new fair value is determined as the net present value of future cash flows per
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3.  Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
3.13 Finandial instruments {continued)

the new terms, resulting in an adjustment to profit and loss for the difference between the fair valve and criginal

net present value at the date of modification.
Trade payabies and accruals

Trade payables and accruals are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Since trade payables and accruals are typically due within one year and the impact of

any effective interest is Immaterial, this equates to initial carrying value.
Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance contracts,
3.14 Deferred income

Amounts received by the Group for services perfarmed in future are classified as deferred income and recognised

in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income when the service is performed.
3.15 Retirament benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitiing them to the contributions. Differences between contributions payable in the period

and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals or prepayments in the bafance sheet.

Full IFRS 19 disciosures relating o the defined benefit pension schemes are not included as we determined the

assets and liabilities associated to be immaterial.
3.16 Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-

related taxes. Revenue for the Group comprises several elements, including:
Venue rental and production-related services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided [such as venue rental and staffing) are recognised net of sales

taxes as those services are provided.

The Group acts as a principal when the risks associated to a show are fully assumed by the Group, in which case

revenue is recognised gross as the performance obligation is the performance of the show. The Group acts as an

50



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEDY}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

3.16 Revenue (continued)

agent when majority of the risks associated to a show are not taken by the Group, and therefore revenue is

recognised net of other parties’ share of revenue/costs.

Revenue from production-related services is recognised at the date of performance of the show, until which time it

is held on the Statement of Financial Position as Deferred income.
Promaotional services

The Group acts as promoter for self-produced shows and shows praduced by third parties. Revenue from these
services is recognised at fair value of consideration received, net of sales taxes, at the date that the promotional

services are provided.
Marketing services

Revenue from the provision of marketing services is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. The fair value of consideration takes into account trade discounts, settlement discounts and volume
rebates. Marketing services revenue is recognised net of sales taxes at point in time as services are provided, or as
recoverable costs are incurred, in accardance with the terms of the contractual agreement. When recorded

marketing services revenue exceeds the amounts invoiced to client, the excess is classified as accrued income.

Ticket sales

Revenue from ticket sales represents the revenue earned from commissions, credit card charges and similar charges.

This revenue is recognised at the date the ticket is soid.

Revenue from ticket sales where the Group is acting as selling agent (whether for its own theatres or for other UK
venues) incdudes booking fees, commissions, and similar additional income charged at the point of sale. These
amounts are recognised net of any sales taxes at the transaction date. Such revenue is recognised as an agent rather

than principal transaction, and so excludes the face value of the tickets sold.

This policy remains valid in the case of third party produced shows as ticketing is a distinct performance obligation

and the Group Is acting as an agent.
Ticket sales for Group owned productions

For Group owned productions, all booking fees, commissions and similar are recognised at the date of the

performance along with the ticket face value.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 25 MARCH 2023

3. summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.16 Revenue {continued)
Retail sales

Revenue from concession sales to customers at the Group's venues is recognised net of sales taxes at the point of

sale.

Other revenue

The Group provides various other services on an ad hoc basis, alt of which are related to its principal activity.
Related revenue is recognised at fair value over the period that such services are performed and the performance

obligations are met.
Joint operations

In reiation to co-producticon arrangements, where a controlfing or joint operation interest is held, revenue includes
the Group's share of revenue for the production. Where no controfling interest is held turnover represents net
income from productions. Where equity accounting is applied, the share of profit or loss is disclosed in the “share

of results of associates and joint ventures” line.
3.17 Government grants

Income from government grants is recognised as deferred income and released to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income as the attached conditions are satisfied. Where the grant relates to procurement of an
asset, the amount received is released to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income aver the useful

life of the asset against associated depreciation.

A material grant related to assets is presented in the statement of financial position as a deduction from the

carrying value of the related asset, with a consequent reduction in the annual charge for depreciation.

COVID-19 related job retention schemes are considered within the scope of 1AS 20, with furlough receipts recorded
as a reduction in payroll expenses,

3.18 IFRS 16 Leases

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred as well as an estimate

of costs to be incurred in restoring the condition of the leasad asset where relevant.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

3.18 IFRS 16 Leases {continued)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date.
The estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assels are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant

and equipment, with the assumption that all extension options will be exercised.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. The Group’s leases include both
variable and fixed lease payments; as variable payments are generally dependent on unpredictable sales and
patronage volume, these are classed as variable lease payments not incorporated into the IFRS 16 lease right-of-
use asset and liability. The liability is subsequently adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability resulting

from reassessments or lease modiications.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease Habilities in ‘finance leases’ in

the statement of financial position.
3.19 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabifities for short-term leases of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an

expense on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.
3.20 Foreign currencies

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group Company
are expressed in pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentational currency

for the consolidated financial statements.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on
the date of the transaction. Such exchange gains and lasses are recagnised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains
or losses on loans that are effectively investment instruments, such as where a parent Company makes a loan with
no repayment terms to a subsidiary holding Company as part of acquisition consideration, are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Results of overseas subsidiaries are translated at year-to-date average rates. Assets and liabilities of overseas
subsidiaries are translated at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arising are

recognised in the translation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policles {continued)

3.21 Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after the share of results of associates and joint arrangements byt before finance income

and costs, other gains and losses and taxes.

Operating expenditure is recognised as incurred. Talent costs associated to the generation of revenue is recognised

as operating expenditure aligned to how the users of the financial statements monitor such costs.
3.22 Finance income

Finance income is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is earned.

3.23 Finance costs

finance casts are recognised in profit or foss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.24 Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
3.25 Pre-Production related costs

Expenses incurred prior to a production going live which are directly attributable to the production of the show are

categorised into property plant and egquipment and depreciated over the assumed useful life of the show.

3.26 Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax,

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they refate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the period calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantiveiy enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be avaitable against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

3.27 Taxation (continued)

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination} of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit or investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and Interests in joint ventures, where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and Jiabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the financial period end date. A deferred
tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profits will be available against which

the asset can be utilised.
3.28 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settie the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to

determine the present value is the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.
4. Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make fudgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not

readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered

to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revislons to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period

of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements
Going concern basis

In order to assess whether it is appropriate for the Group to be reported as a going concern, the Directors are
required to make judgements regarding the Group's future trading performance, cash generation and ability to
satisfy its financial obligations.
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4.  Critical accounting jJudgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The Group has considered the combining of operation with Jujamcyn Theatres LLC in June 2023 as well as
refinancing of the debt in order to finance the merger in the consideration of the going concern assessment. Having
undertaken appropriate enquiries and having considered the business activities and the Group's principal risks and
uncertainties, the Directors conciuded that the financial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis.

Please refer to the Directors’ Report for our detailed assessment of this matter.
Government grants

In recognizing government grants, the Group considers the applicable accounting standards guidance in guantifying
the grants recognized as income. The Directors are required to make judgements in applying such guidance to

justify the grants claimed.
Deferred Tax Assets

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax fosses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be availabie against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

The Directors are required to make judgements on the probability of future taxable profits.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Carrying value of non-current assets

Impairment

The Group assesses the carrying values of property, plant and equipment should indicators for impairment exist.
Intangible assets are assessed for impairment annually. Recoverability is dependent upon assumptions and
estimates regarding market conditions, future cash flows and discount rates, known as at 25 March 2023. A

material change in assumptions may significantly impact the potential impairment of these assets.
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5.  Revenue

The Group's revenue from external customers by classification is detailed below:

52 week 52 week

period ended period ended

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £000

Venue Rental and Production Related Services 369,671 139,819

Promotional & Marketing Services 116,475 75,686

Ticket and Retail Sales 212,151 101,896

Other 6,723 3,569

Total revenue 705,020 320,970
The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical location is detailed below:

52 week 52 week

period ended period ended

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

United Kingdom 276,549 164,933

Rest of Europe 154,048 47,830

North America 274,421 105,161

APAC 2 3,046

Total revenue 705,020 320,970
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5. Operating profit/{loss)

Operating profit/(loss) for the period has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
Note 25 March2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000
Oepreciation of property, plant and equipment i5 30,538 27,958
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets - buildings 15 8,408 7,003
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 14 2,398 4,291
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 1,436 {195)
Operating lease charges 5,232 1,874
Staff costs 8 174,129 109,563
Other income (15,629) (57,534)
Other income is comprised of government grants and management fees received in the period.
7. Auditors’ remuneration
The analysis of the auditors’ remuneration is as follows:
52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
25 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for the audit of:
The consolidated and parent financial statements 538 500
The subsidiary financial statements 48 50
Total audit fees 583 550
German Subsidy Claim review 13 -
Global mobility advisory services - 11
Tax services 23 -
Total non-audit fees 36 11
Total 619 561
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8. Staffcosts

The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) was:

52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
25 March 2023 26 March 2022

Directors 4 S
Venue staff 6,450 4,625
Other 1,313 1,110
Total monthly average number of employees 7,767 5,740

The average number of individuals with an employment contract in place during the period and the number of
other persons providing similar services is 7,767.

Their aggregate remuneration comprised: As at 52 week As at 52 week
period ended 25 period ended

March 2023 26 March 2022

£000 £'000

Wages and salaries 161,197 98,397
Social security costs 10,563 8,929
Other pension costs 2,369 2,177
Total aggregate remuneration 174,129 109,503

Current year staff costs are presented net of income from government support schemes totalling £nil (2022:

£12.0m).

Directors disciosed here are only those employed by the Group and therefore excludes board members employed
by the Group’s shareholders. Remuneration for directors employed by the Group’s shareholders with respect to

their services to the Group is incidental to their services to the Group’s shareholders.

The average monthly number of employees of the Company was four, being the executive directors (2022: five).

Certain US employees included within the payroll remuneration figures above do not have an employment contract
in place and work on a temporary basis. The number of unique payees during the year for the US region was
4,378; the average number of US employees included in the total monthly average number of employees of 2,115

does not include these employees.
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8. Staff costs {continued)

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors and key management personne! of the Group Is set out below:

52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
25 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000
Remuneration of directors:

Salaries, fees, bonuses, and benefits in kind 2,704 1,621
Money purchase pension contributions 4 6
Total remuneration of directors 2,708 1,627

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel:
Remuneration 5,797 3,631
Social security contributions 816 523
Pension 54 a1
Total remuneration of key management personnel 6,667 4,195

Note that the remuneration disclosed above includes remuneration of directors of the Group’s ultimate parent
company in the UK, international Entertainment Holdings Limited. Key management personnel are those who have
significant infiuence over the operaticnal running of the business. During the period, retirement benefits were

accruing to two (2022: two) directors in respect of defined contribution schemes.

The highest paid director received remuneration of £2,010,238 (2022: £1,041,012). The value of the Company’s
contributions paid to a defined contribution pension scheme in respect of that individual amounted to £4,000
{2022: £4,000).

During the period, no directors and key management personnel received compensation for loss of office (2022:

none).
Pensions

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents contributions
payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to £2,369,000(2022: £2,177,000). Contributions totalling £393,978
{2022: £711,000) were payable to the fund at the balance sheet date.

Employee benefit trust

The Group has no direct employee share scheme or share-based payment arrangement. However, certain
employees of the Group have acquired an interest in the equity of the holding Company via an employee benefit trust

in both the current and prior periods.
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9. Finance income

52 week
period ended 52 week
25 March period ended
2023 27 March 2022
£'000 £'000
Interest income 4,752 2,789
Finance income 4,752 2,789
10. Finance costs
52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
25 March 2023 27 March 2022
£'000 £'000
Interest on loans from parent undertakings 5,750 5,111
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 38,808 36,108
Interest on obligations under finance leases 5,333 5,238
Interest expense on IFRS 16 lease liabilities 9,972 9,036
Amortisation of IFRS 9 Debt Modificaticn {847) (846)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain} (12,788} (3,927)
Finance costs 46,328 50,720
11, Taxation
Analysis of tax charge/ (credit) in the periocd
52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
25 March 2023 26 March 2022
Current tax £'000 £'000
Tax charge/(credit) on profit/{loss) for the period 10,752 {1,246)
Prior year tax adjustment - 1,339
Total current tax 10,752 93
Deferred tax 24
Deferred tax charge/{credit) current year 9,640 (16,992)
Change in tax rate - 5,316
Adjustments in respect of prior periods (4,804} 5,723
Total deferred tax 4,836 (5,953)
Tax on profit/{loss) 15,588 {5,860)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 19% {2022: 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the period. Taxation for

other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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11. Taxation (Continued}

The charge/ (credit) for the period can be reconciled to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income as
follows:

52 week 52 week
period ended period ended
25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000
Profit/{Loss} before tax 78,923 {28,598)
Profit/[Loss)muitiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% (2022: 19%) 14,995 {5,434)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,526 1,125
Adiustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods {4,804) 7,062
Effect of different rate for deferred tax 1,342 5,317
fEfffect. o\t different rates of subsidiaries cperating in other 3,868 (200)
jurisdictions
Theatre tax credit {2,000) {1,280)
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets - {12,449)
Effect of foreign exchange 661 (1)
Tax chﬂel {credit] for the period (see note above) 15,588 {5,860}

The closing UK deferred tax liability as at 25 March 2023 has been caiculated to reflect the tax rate at which the
deferred tax liahility is expec{gd to become payable. This 25% rate was announced in Finance 8ill 2021 which

received royal assent on 10 June 2021 becoming Finance Bill 2021, effective from 1 Aprit 2023.

Deferred tax assets on carried forward unutilised losses in Australia of £2.4m {2022: £2.5m), £0.4m in the UK {2022:
£0.4m} have not been recognised as sufficient profits to utilise these losses are not expected to arise in the relevant
entities. Deferred tax assets on Corporate Interest Restricted amounts of £70.3m (2022 £50.1m} have aiso not been

recognised as debt ratios in the group expect to continue to exceed relevant limits.

There are carried forward unutilised tax losses in the US of £29.3m (2022: £39.7m) cn which a deferred tax asset
of £6.1m (2022: £8.3m) Is recognised. This is included in total deferred tax assets for the US of £7.7m. The total

deferred tax assets recognised for Germany is £5.6m.

The net tax creditor is £7.7m (2022: debtor of £2.5m) made up of a UK debtor of £0.6m, a US creditor of £2.5m and

a German ¢reditor of £5.8m.

There is a deferred tax liability of £37.3m and a deferred tax asset of £27.6m {refer to note 24}.
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12. Investments

The directly and indirectly held subsidiaries are listed in note 35,

25 March 2023 26 March 2022
Group £'000 £'000
Cost and net book value
Unlisted investments 14,395 574
Investments 14,395 574
25 March 2023 26 March 2022
Company £'000 £'000
Cost and net book value
Subsidiary investments 413,835 413,835
Investments 413,835 413,835

The Group’s unlisted investments relate to its investment in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, a
company incorporated in the United States of America of which the Group owns 24.77%. On December 13, 2022,
Kings Theatre Developer, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group acquired all interests in Kings Theatre Master
Tenant, LLC, obtaining 100% control of the entity. The acquired business owned 23.69% of Kings Theatre
Redevelopment Company, which increased the Group's stake from 1.08% {2022) to 24.77%.

The Group's acquisition of Kings Theatre Master Tenant has been presented at book value herein; the

determination of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of this entity will be completed during FY24.

13. Interests In assoclates and joint ventures — Group

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Interests in joint ventures 5,869 2,699
Interests in associates 1,740 670
Interests in associates and joint ventures 7,609 3,369

Joint ventures

The Group has interests in several individually immaterial joint ventures which take the form of both productions
and businesses. Each investment is structured as a separate vehicle and the Group has a residual interest in the net
assets of the investment. Accordingly, the Group has classified its interests as joint ventures. For some of the
productions, the Group is entitled to less than 50% of the production earnings however the production agreement

requires unanimous ¢onsent in decision making resulting in joint control.
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13. interests in associates and joint ventures — Group (continued)

The following companies have a different year end date to the Group’s accounting financial year end of 25 March

2023:

- Scout London Limited: 31 December

- Golden Egg Productions Limited: 31 August

- The Old Vic Theatre Company (The Cut) Limited: 31 August

- People NY LP: 31 December

-  Leopoldstadt Broadway LP: 31 December
- 88 Notes LLC: 31 December

- OWS Goes Global Limited: 14 April

- Beautiful Thing NY Limited Partnership: 31 December

- HP Production Australia Pty Ltd: 30 June
- HP Australia Unit Trust: 30 June
- I15M Show AG: 31 December

This is as a resuit of the entities not being controlled by IEHL, hence year end dates may need to suit the

requirements af majority shareholders.

The Group has followed the IFRS guidance for applying the equity method of accounting to these joint venture

entities. Therefore, when the statutory year end falls within three months of the Group’s year end the last set of

statutory accounts were used; otherwise statutory and interim accounts were used.

The joint ventures are not restricted in their ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or

to repay ioans or advances by the entity.

The following table analyses, in aggregate, the carrying amount and share of total comprehensive income of these

joint ventures.

Joint Ventures

28 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Carrying amount of interests in joint ventures 5,869 2,699
Share of total comprehensive Income 4,575 2,392

Associotes

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Carrying amount of interests in associates 1,740 670
Share of total comprehensive income/{expense) 55 {6)
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14. Intangible assets — Group

Total
Assets under Other - Intangible
Software construction Intangibles Assets Goodwill Total
£000 £°000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 27 March 2021 23,382 2,962 9,800 36,144 370,326 406A70
Additions 1,171 916 - 2,087 - 2,087
Recognised on acquisition of a subsidiary - - 9,294 9,294 37,814 47,108
Disposals (282) - {938} (3,220} - {1,220)
txchange difterences {24) - {341) {365) 1,525 1,160
At 26 March 2022 24,247 3,878 17,815 45,940 409,665 455,605
Additions 4,198 1,125 2,941 8,263 11,400 19,663
Digposals (4,179} {25} - (4,208) - {4,204)
Transfer 2,839 {2,839) - - - -
Exchange differences {6,272} - 1,127 (5,144) 10,617 5473
At 25 March 2023 20,833 2,139 21,883 44,855 431,682 476,537
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 27 March 2021 10,673 - 6,862 17,535 7,442 24,977
Charge for the 52 week period 2,049 - 2,242 4,291 - 4,291
Reclassification - - - - 1,755 1,755
Disposals (282) - (938) (1,220) - (1,220)
Exchange differences {17} - {132) (149) (215) (364)
At 26 March 2022 12,423 - 8,034 20,457 8,982 29,439
Charge for the 52 week period 1,400 - 998 2,398 - 2,398
Disposals {198) - - {198) - {198)
Exchange differences (5,593) - {814) (6,407) - {6,407}
At 25 March 2023 8,032 - 8,218 16,250 8,982 25,232
Carrying amount
At 25 March 2023 12,801 2,139 13,665 28,605 422,700 451,305
At 26 March 2022 11,824 3,878 9,781 25,483 400,683 426,166

Additions to assets under construction £1.1m (2022: £0.9 million) relates to software additions. Other intangible assets relate tc

show rights costs and pre-production related costs.

The Company has no Intangible assets (2022: £nil).
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14. intangible assets — Group {continued)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units (CGUs) or

group of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has

been allocated to the following CGUs:

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£000 £'000

United Kingdom 248,679 248,079
USA 120,133 100,684
Mainland Europe 40,466 37,986
Marketing services 14,022 13,934
‘fotal goodwill 422,700 400,683

The Group tests goodwill and Intangible assets annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications
that goodwill might be impaired. Property, plant and equipment is also tested for impairment if there are indicators
of impairment. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the group of units are determined as the higher of value

in use or fair value less costs to sell for each CGU and group of units.

The impairment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Mainland Europe and Marketing services do not indicate any

impairment against goodwill, other intangibles or property, plant and equipment.

The key assumptions and resulting attributes of the impairment review are as follows:

United Mainland Marketing
Kingdom usa Europe Services

£Ms e P
Goodwill 248.1 120.1 40.5 14.0
Net book value excl Goodwill 189.3 204.1 41.7 0.3
Total net assets 437.4 324.2 82.2 14.3
WACC assumption [pre-tax) 14.4% 13.81% 13.77% 14.4%
GDP growth 0.2% 1.6% 0.0% 0.2%

The net book value consists of the value of property, plant, and equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill, reduced

by the value of obligations under finance leases.

The values for the key assumptions were arrived at by taking into consideration historical information and
comparing to external sources where appropriate, such as market rates for discount factors. GDP growth rates are
used as the terminal value growth rate in calculating the net present values of the respective CGUs, while the GDP

growth rates applied as the base growth factor for years 4t0 5.
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14, Intangible assets - Group (continued}

Budgeted cash flows — the calculation of value in use has been based on the cash flows forecast in the Group’s FY24
budget (board approved), as well as the latest three year plan {FY25 — FY26) for the subsequent years until the

lenniinal yed:.

The FY24 budget and the most recent three-year plan have accounted for the fact that FY23 exceeded expectations

due to a strong content schedule, but have also considered the impact of escalating energy costs.
The following sensitivities were applied to the impairment test:

Sensitising the discount rate and terminal growth rates by assuming the “breaking point” i.e. at what discount rate

and/or growth rate would result in impairments across the CGUs.

The increase in the discount rate required to create an impairment to each CGU is: UK 16.8%, US 17.4%, Mainland

Europe 22.1% and Marketing Services at 40.0%.

The reduction in the terminal growth rate required to create an impairment to each CGU is: UK -4.2%, US -4.9%,

Mainland Europe -17.5%.
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15, Property, plant and equipment - Group

Short-
Right of Long-term term Fixtures
Freehold Use leasehold leasehold Assets under and
property Asset property property  construction fittings Total
£'000 £000 £7000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 27 March 2021 173,398 85,120 145,777 21,831 3,506 82,364 511,796
Additions - 2,134 383 - 3,654 23,668 29,839
Recognised on acquisition
of a subsidiary 131,888 - 39 - E 3,896 135,823
Disposals {129} (362} (376) - - {2,308) {3,175}
IFRS 16 Adjustments - 15,491 - - - - 15,491
Exchange differences {872) (978) 3,355 - {8} 418 1,815
At 26 March 2022 304,185 101,405 149,178 21,831 7,152 107,838 691,539
Additions 7,654 12,968 5,858 - 14,240 24,244 64,964
Disposals - (82) - - - (2,633) (2,715}
Transfer - - - - (396) - (396)
IFRS 16 Adjustments - 14,971 - - - - 14,971
Exchange differences 23,912 6,840 2,073 1,591 174 6,861 41,451
At 25 March 2023 335,751 136,102 157,109 23,422 21,170 136,310 809,864
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 27 March 2021 26,310 17,081 36,067 4,658 - 38,201 122,317
Charge for the 52 week
period 7,116 7,003 5,750 523 - 14,569 34,961
Reclassification - - - - - {1,755) {1,755}
Disposals (129) (362} {376) - - (2,113) (2,980)
IFRS 16 Adjustment - {754) - - - - (754)
Exchange differences {233) 99 1,135 - - 243 1,244
At 26 March 2022 33,064 23,067 42,576 5,181 - 49,145 153,033
Charge for the 52 week
period 9,766 8,408 7,050 350 - 13,372 38,946
Disposals - - {82) - - {1,303} {1,385)
IFRS 16 Adjustment - (3) - - - - (3)
Exchange differences 9,741 1,440 {2,967) 1,589 - 9,698 19,501
At 25 March 2023 52,571 32,912 46,577 7,120 - 70,912 210,092
Carrying amount
At 25 March 2023 283,180 103,190 110,532 16,302 21,170 65,398 599,772
At 26 March 2022 271,121 78,338 106,602 16,650 7,152 58,693 538,556

The additions recognised in the carrying amount of assets under construction is £13.0m (2022: £3.7m).
IFRS 16 adjustments during the period related to modifications and changes to lease terms during the period.

The Company has no property, plant and equipment (2022: £nil).
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16. Inventories — Group

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000
Finished goods at cost 1,894 1,560
nventory provision - _
Finished goods and goods for resale 1,894 1,560

The Group recognised £25.9m of inventories as an expense during the period {2022: £12.1m). The Group wrote off
no inventory during the period (2022: nil).

The Company has no inventory {2022: £nil).

17. investments in shows — Group

2S5 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000
investments in shows 3,005 2,669

Investments in shows reflect the Group’s investment in preductions for which it does not have a controlling interest,

joint control or significant influence.
The Company has no investments in shows (2022: £nil).
18. Trade and other receivables — Group

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000
Notes receivable 12,805 9,033
Other non-current receivables 5,700 17,994
Amounts recelvable after more than 12 months 18,505 27,027

The notes receivable balance comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in relation to the financing
structure for the redevelopment of The Kings Theatre via a commonplace arrangement created by the US
government to encourage financial institutions to invest into redevelopment of historic buildings. Interest is
receivabie at a rates of 3.8% to 8%. These will be recoverable from the counterparties either over the life of the
instrument or by transfer of leasehold interests. The long-term receivable relates to a balance acquired as part of
the ACE acquisition and is a fee for theatre development services provided which will be paid over a number of

years.
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18. Trade and other receivables — Group {continued)
25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£000 £'000
Trade receivables 35,445 37,511
Prepayments and accrued income 22,386 15,751
Corporation tax receivable - 2,506
VAT receivable - 3,757
Other receivables 19,052 15,614
Amounts receivable within 12 months 76,883 75,139

Other receivables include a related party balance of £3.7m due from the Group’s parent company, IE Luxco S.a.r.
{Luxembourg) {2022: £3.7m), as well as an intercompany receivable with the Group’s parent company of £8.2m

(2022: nil) repayable on demand.
The Company had no trade and other receivables {2022: £nil).

Al! impaired trade receivables have been provided to the extent they are believed not te be recoverable. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The Group does

not hold any collateral as security. Assets which are neither past due nor impaired are considered fully recoverable.
Analysis of trade receivable ageing

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group. As of 25 March 2023, some of the Group’s trade receivables were due and/or expected due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers with no material concentration within any one
customer and no customers who are of particularly high risk of default. The ageing analysis of these trade

receivables is as follows:

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Up to 3 months 33,191 24,484
3 to 6 months 1,506 1,376
Qver 6 months 1,394 12,825
Total 36,591 38,685

As of 25 March 2023, the Group also held past due trade receivables which had been appropriately provided for:

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Up to 3 months 462 199
3 to 6 months 94 49
Qver 6 months 590 926
Total 1,146 1,174
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18. Trade and other receivables — Group (continued)

Under iFRS 9, the Group is required to utilise objective evidence as well as consider forward looking information,

such as the economic conditions in the countries where the Group operates, and the probability of default when

talculating expected credit losses. The maturity of financial assets is therefore used as an indicator as to the

probability of default.

19. Cash and cash equivaients — Group

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Cash and cash equivalents held in own accounts 114,656 135,955
Cash and cash equivalents held in escrow 11,280 10,558
Cash and cash equivalents 125,936 146,513

As of 25 March 2023, the Company held £1,000 in cash and cash equivalents {2022: £nil).

20. Trade and other payables - Group
25 March 2023

26 March 2022

£'000 £'000
Trade payables 51,453 49,610
Deferred income 187,676 190,444
Accruals 91,204 69,861
Other taxation and social security 1,363 1,449
Tax creditor 2,267 2,268
VAT Payable 6,637 -
Other payables 35,344 13,304
Government grants received and not utilised 1,350 1,494
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 377,294 328,430

The other payables balance includes payroli creditors and amounts due to production companies.

A portion of deferred revenue is held on behalf of producers. Revenue recognised from this balance will be net of

the share of income payable Lo producers. Of the total revenue recognised durlng the year, £128.6m was within

the advanced sales balance in FY22 as the cash related to the performances was already received (2022: £44.9m).

The Company had a loan payable to its direct subsidiary of £13.7m (2022: £13.0m) including interest accrued, which

is repayable on demand.
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21. Borrowings — Group

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£000 £'000

Bank loans - senior debt 295,653 366,867
Bank loans - revolving credit facility - -
Total senior debt 295,653 366,867
Fair vaiue adjustment (3,733} 3965
Loans - other 14,195 -
Deferred consideration 102,962 110,373
Shareholder loans 150,040 155,661
Borrowings 559,117 633,866
Amount due for settlement within 12 months 105,988 30,325
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 453,129 603,541
Borrowings 559,117 633,866

The bank loans — senior debt, are secured by a charge over the assets of International Entertainment Finance

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. These loans are governed by a senior finance agreement with cavenants,

During the year these loans were subject to interest at a rate which fluctuated in line with SONIA with a margin of

4.75%. Payment in kind (PIK} interest was capitalised to the senior debt balance.

The Loans — other relate to amounts due to external investors for the Moulin Rouge production within Germany.

The Group also has loans from its shareholders totalling £150.0m, including accrued interest {2022: £155.7m]).

Interest is non-cash paying and accrues at fixed rates ranging between 4.0% and 5.0%.

22. Obligations under finance leases - Group

25 March 2023

26 March 2022

£'000 £'000
Amount due within 12 months
Finance leases 4,225 4,331
IFRS 16 leases 10,738 5,681
Obligations under lease liabilities 14,963 10,012
25 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £000
Amount due after 12 months
Finance leases 88,290 87,508
IFRS 16 |eases 109,783 80,690
Obligations under lease liabilities 198,073 168,198
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22, Obligations under finance leases — Group (continued)

Finance leases - Group

Minimum lease payments

Present vaiue of minimum lease

payments
25 March 2023 26 March 2022 25 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Within one year 4,780 4,512 4,225 4,331
in the second to fifth years inclusive 19,603 18,505 13,311 13,775
After five years 424,006 409,022 77,050 75,835
448,388 432,039 94,586 93,941
Less: future finance charges {353,804) {338,098) - -
94,586 93,941 94,589 93,941
Unamartised finance costs (2,070} {2,102) (2,070} (2.102)
Present value of lease obligations 92,515 91,839 92,515 91,839
25 March 2023 26 March 2022
£'000 £'000

Finance leases - Group
Amount due within 12 months 4,225 4,331
Amount dye after 12 months 88,290 87,508
Obligations under finance lease liabilities 92,515 91,839

The Group |eases certain properties under finance lease arrangements. The average lease term is 75 years. The

Group does not have the option to purchase the properties for a nominal value at the end of the lease terms, and

the Group’s obligations under the finance leases are secured over the properties being leased.

Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are implicit rates ranging from 5.6% to 6.1% {2022:

5.5% to 6.1%).

IFRS 16 lease liabllities - Group

25 March 2023 26 March 2022

£'000 £'000

Current 10,738 5,681
Non-current 109,783 80,692
IFRS 16 lease liability 120,521 86,373
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22. Obligations under finance leases — Group {continued)

The weighted average incrementa) borrowing rate applied to measure lease habilities is 8.30% (2022: 8.30%).
25 March 2023 26 March 2022

Maturity analysis £'000 £'000
No later than 1 year 10,738 5,681
Later than 1 year and not later than S years 18,708 18,847
Later than 5 years 91,075 61,845

120,521 86,373

The Group does not face a significant licuidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored
by the Group’s finance function. Overall the variable payments constitute up to 20.45% of the Group's entire
lease payments. The group expects this ratio to remain constant in future years. The total cash outflow for leases
during the year amounted to £23.1m (2022: £15.8m).

23. Provisions — Group

Acquisition- Refunds and

reiated Ticketing
provisions Dilapidations Provision Other Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £7000 £000
At 27 March 2021 9,835 3,490 812 1,664 15,801
Additions 684 467 1,109 4,625 6,885
Foreign exchange adjustments (283) - - - {283)
Other adjustments (1,980} - - - {1,980)
Utilised/released {1,249) - - - {1,249)
At 26 March 2022 7,007 3,957 1,921 6,289 19,174
Additions 571 46 - 2,429 3,046
Foreign exchange adjustments 381 137 - 752 1,270
utilised/released (331) (8) {325) (3,909) (4,573)
Other adjustments - 207 {470) {2,571) (2,834)
At 25 March 2023 7,628 4,339 1,126 2,990 16,083

Acquisition-related provisions relate to earnout agreements in respect of the acquisitions of Mehrl Group. The
fluctuations in the earnout provision can be attributed to the interest of £0.6m. The remainder of the consideration

is expected to be payable in FY24,

Dilapidations relate to the expected level of difapidations mainly refated to central offices. The adequacy of the

provisions is periodically reviewed to ensure that they will meet the final obligations.

The refunds and ticketing provision will be reversed against refunded commissions and any customer refunds that

are non-recoverable from Producers over the next few years.
Included within other is £nil for onerous contracts (2022: £2.3m)

The Company has no provisions (2022: £nil).
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24. Deferred tax - Group

Accelerated Acquisition

Revaluation tax of
of property depreciation subsidiary Tax losses Other Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 27 March 2021 25,919 240 2,039 {16,536) {779) 10,883
{Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (897) {1,903} {207) 237 (8,499) {11,269)
Change in rate of deferred tax 8,184 76 622 (3,321) {245) 5,316
At 26 March 2022 33,206 (1,587) 2,454 {19,620) (9,523} 4,930
(Credit}/Charge to profit or loss (887) 289 {141) 3,974 1,602 4,837
At 25 March 2023 32,319 (1,298) 2,313 {15,646) (7,921) 9,767
25 March 26 March
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Deferred tax liabilities 37,333 35,662
Deferred tax assets {27,566) {30,732)
Net deferred tax liability 9,767 4,930
Deferred tax assets are expected to be realised by profits generated in future years in each relevant territory.
The Company has no deferred tax (2022: £nil).
25. Share capital — Group and Company
Number of £1 Nominal
Ordinary shares value
£'000
Authorised, issued and fully paid:
At 26 March 2022 and 25 March 2023 413,427 414

No share issue has taken place during the period ended 25 March 2023.
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26. Notes to the cash flow statement

Net cash generated by operating activities

25 March 2023

26 March 2022

£'000 £'000
Operating profit 120,499 19,333
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 2,398 4,291
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 30,538 26,203
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets - buildings 8,408 7,003
Share of profits of associates and joint ventures {4,630} {743)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,436 -
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (3,713) 4,668
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 154,936 60,755
Increase in inventories (334) {616)
Increase in receivables {983) {36,459)
increase/{Decrease) in payables 25,999 116,583
Cash flow from operating activities 179,613 140,263
Corporate taxes (paid)/received (3,680) 1,718
Net cash flow from operating activities 175,939 141,981

Net debt reconciliation

25 March 2023

26 March 2022

£'000 £'C00
Bank loans - senior debt (295,653) (366,867}
Bank loans - revolving credit facility - -
Total senior debt {295,653) {366,867)
Fair value adjustment/ unamortised financing fees 3,733 {965)
Deferred consideration {102,962) {110,373)
Shareholder loans {150,040) {155,661)
Obligations under finance leases (213,036) {178,210)
Total debt (757,958) (812,076)
Cash and cash equivalents 125,936 146,513
Net debt {632,022) (665,563)
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26. Notes to the cash flow statement {continued)

Movement in net debt

Cash at bank Debt Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Net debt as at 26 March 2022 146,513 {812,076} (665,563}
Cash flows {26,055) 108,665 82,610
Foreign exchange adjustments 5,478 - 5,478
Other non-cash movement - {54,547} (54,547)
Net debt as at 25 March 2023 125,936 (757,958) (632,022)

27. Contingent liabilities

A corporate cross guarantee of the senior debt exists between the Company and the majority of its subsidiary
undertakings. The senior debt is secured by a debenture over the majority of the assets of the Group. The Group
also has in place various guarantees across its portfolio, which are typica! of commercial and property rental

agreements.

The Group is subject to various legal claims or potential litigation at points in time. These matters are considered
by the board and appropriate provision made where a fiability is assessed and reasonably gquantifiable. All such
ongoing items have been fully assessed and none are presently expected to resuilt in a significant financial cost to

the Group.
2B. Contingent assets

At the balance sheet date the Group had contingent assets of £nil (2022: £11.3m) representing contingent COVID-

19 related grant income receivable from the German government.
29. Commitments

Capital commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had material contractual commitments for capital expenditure of £nil (2022:

£nil).
30. Financial risk management

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to maximise shareholder value whilst safeguarding the Group's
ahility to continue as a going concern. In common with other private equity portfolioc companies, the Group carries
a high level of net debt compared to equity. Total capital is calculated as total equity as shown in the consolidated

statement of position, plus interest-bearing net bank debt. Net bank debt is calculated as the total of long and short
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term borrowings excluding shareholder loans as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less

cash and cash equivalents.
30. Financial risk management {continued)

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk

and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on minimising potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Descriptions of the financial risks and how these are managed and mitigated are included in the Strategic Report

on pages 14 to 15.

The below table demaonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.

Financial risks Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk An increase/decrease of one percentage point in LIBOR would increase/decrease the

Group’s loss by £3.0m (2022: £3.7m}.

Foreign Had GBP strengthened against the US dollar by an additional 1% during the period,
exchange risk assuming all other variables remained constant, the Group’s profit would have decreased
by £0.1m (2022: loss would have increased by £0.1m).
Had GBP strengthened against the Euro by an additional 1% during the period, assuming
all other variables remained constant, the Group's profit would have decreased by £0.2m
{2022: loss would have decreased by £0.2m).

Liquidity

The following tables detail the Group’s contractuai maturities for its financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate

curves at the balance sheet date. The Group is not party to any derivative contracts.
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30. Financial risk management {continued)

Less than 1 year 1-5 years 5+ years Total
£'000 £000 £000 £°000
25 March 2023
Trade and other payables 175,363 - - 179,363
Finance lease liabilities 4,780 19,603 424,006 448,339
Borrowings 105,988 453,129 - 559,117
Total cash-settled liabilities 290,131 472,732 424,006 1,186,869
26 March 2022
Trade and other payables 134,224 - - 134,224
Finance lease liabilities 4,512 18,505 409,022 432,039
Borrowings 30,325 603,541 - 633,866
Total cash-settled Habilities 169,061 622,046 409,022 1,200,129
The Company has no relevant cash-settled assets or liabilities and so has no liquidity risk.
31. Financial Instruments
Categories of financial instruments
Cash and receivables Financial liabilities at Total
amortised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000
25 March 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 125,936 - 125,936
Trade and other receivables 76,883 - 76,883
Financial assets 202,819 - 202,819
Trade and other payables - 181,631 181,631
Borrowings - 559,118 559,118
Obligations under finance leases - 213,036 213,036
Financial liabilities - 953,785 953,785
Net financlal assets/{liabilities) 202,819 {953,785} {750,966}
26 March 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 146,513 - 146,513
Trade and other receivables 75,139 - 75,139
Financial assets 221,652 - 221,652
Trade and other payables - 136,492 136,492
Borrowings - 633,866 633,866
Obligations under finance leases - 178,210 178,210
Financial liabilities - 948,568 948,568
Net financiat assets/{liabilities) 221,652 {948,568} (726,916)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised

cost in the financial statements approximate to their fair values,
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32. Controlling party

The Group is majority owned by Providence Equity Partners through its investment funds, Providence Equity
Partners VII-A LP, Providence VIl Giobal Holdings LP, and Providence Equity Partners {Midsummer]) LP. In June 2021,
Silver Lake Partners V Cayman, L.p., a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership acquired 18.8% shares in If
Holdco S.a.r.), through its wholly owned subsidiary Amplify Capital Investment Pte. Ltd. Providence Equity Partners
remains the majority owner of IE Holdco S.a.r.}., which is the beneficial owner of IE Luxco S.a.r.l., which holds 100%
ownership of International Entertainment Holdings Limited. The Directors consider Providence Equity Partners to

be the controlling party of the Group.
33. Related party transactions

Group
Transactions with directors and key management personnel

Remuneration paid to the directors or other, who are considered to be key management personnel, is disclosed in

note 8.
Trading transactions

During the pericd, the Group provided production and marketing related services to joint ventures of £12.2m (2022:
£11.4m). At the end of the period, balances of £2.9m (2022: £4.8m) were owed to the Group by the joint ventures
for productions and marketing related receivables, as well as investment funding balances. These balances are
unsecured and will be settled periodically over the course of the production. There are currently no provisions
relating to these balances. These transactions have been conducted at arm’s length. The Group also received

services from related party businesses totaling £3.6m (2022: £0.1m) and owed £0.4m at yearend {2022: £0.1m).
34. Events after batance sheet date

In FY24, the Group will merge operations with Jujamcyn Theatres LLC in the US. The transaction will increase the
Group’s theatre venues on Broadway from 2 to 7, aligning to the Group's growth strategy. The Group will undergo

a refinancing of its debt in April 2023 tc fund the merger.
35. Subsidiary entities, assoclates and joint ventures and investments

Subsidiarijes

100% of the ordinary share capital of all subsidiaries is owned directly or indirectly unless otherwise indicated.
Where indicated, shareholdings are effective ownership percentages as held by the parent {i.e. if a subsidiary
holding company is 90% owned, and owns 100% of all its subsidiaries, all subsidiaries are shown as being 90%
owned).
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35. Subsidiary entities, assoclates and joint ventures and investments (Continued)

Incorporated in United Kingdom

As the ultimate parent company, International Entertainment Holdings Limited has guaranteed the debts and

liabilities held within these companies as required under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the audit

exemption has been applied for the following entities:

Subsidiary undertaking
Direct investments
International Entertainment Mideo Limited®
Indirect investments
AKA, CP Limited?
AKA Group Limited?
AKA NYC Limited?
AKA Promotions Limited?
ATG Entertainment Limited?
ATG London Limited?

ATG Managemant Limited?

ATG Productions Limited?

ATGP Shows One Limited*

Aylesbury Waterside Theatre Limited?
Churchill Theatre Bromley Limited®

CP Studio Limited?

Digital Media Services UK Limited®
Encore International Merchandise Limited?
First Family Entertainment LLP?

G.S Lashmar Limited®

Goiden Egg Productions Limited
Glasgow Theatres Limited?

Highland Fling fapan Limited?
International Entertainment Finance Limited?
International Entertainment Investments
Limited*

KKC Rights Limited*

KKC Productions Limited*

London Theatre Club Limited?

London Turnstyle Limited?®

Milton Keynes Theatre Limited?

New Wimbledon Theatre Limited®
Playhouse Theatre Limited®

Pretty Woman UK Tour Limited*
Richmond Theatre Limited?

SATG Rights Limited?

Savoy Theatre Group Limited?
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Principal activity
Holding company

Holding company
Holding company
Marketing services
Marketing services
Holding company
Theatre operator and
ticketing company
Dormant

Production company
Production company
Theatre operator
Dormant

Marketing services
Digital media services
Dormant

Production company
Dormant

Production company
Theatre operator
Dormant

Holding company
Holding company

Production company
Production company
Dormant

Dormant

Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Production company
Theatre operator
Dormant

Holding company
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35. Subsidiary entities, associates and joint ventures and investments {Continued}

incorporated in United Kingdom (Continued)

Indirect investments (Continued)

Savoy Theatre Holdings Limited?

Savoy Theatre Limited?®

Screenstage Limited®

Screenstage Productions Limited?

Smart Plays Limited?

Sonia Friedman Productions Limited®

SFP Dreams Limited?®

SFP Shows Limited®

SFP Sunny Limited?®

Stoke-on-Trent Theatres Limited?

The Ambassador Entertainment Group Limited?
The Ambassador Theatre Group Limited?®
The Ambassador Theatre Group {Venues)
Limited?®

The Ambassador Theatre Group Overseas
Holdings Limited®

Theatre Management (Holdings) Limited?
Theatre Management Limited?

The Duke of York’s Theatre Limited®

The Ticket Machine Group Limited?
Theatre Royal Brighton Limited?

woking Turnstyle Limited?®

Incorporated in USA

Subsidiaryundertaking

Ambassador Theatre Group — North America, LLC?

ATG San Antonio, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises — Brooklyn, LLC?
Arts Center Enterprises — New Orleans, LLC’
ACE SL, LLC*#*

Ambassador Theatre Group - NY, LLC®
ATG Colonial, LLC®

ATG Detroit, LLCY?

ATG San Francisco, LLC®

ATG Tickets US, LLC®

Broadway San Francisco, LLC*

Creative Partnership LA, Inc!?

Encore Merchandising, Inc'*

Hudson Theatre, LLC®

IEHL US Holdings Inc®

Kings Theatre Developer, LLC®
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% Shares held

Holding company

Theatre operator
Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Theatre operator
Holding company
Holding and productions
Theatre operator

Holding company

Holding company
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Ticketing agency

Theatre operator
Theatre operator

Principal activity

Management services
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Theatre operator
Venue aperator
Production company
Venue operator
Veéenue operator
Venue aperator
Ticketing agency
Theatre operator
Marketing services
Dormant

Theatre operator
Helding company
Venue developer
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35. Subsidiary entities, associates and joint ventures and investments (Continued)

incorporated in USA (Continued)

Kings Theatre Manager, LLC¥

Kings Theatre Master Tenant, LLC*

Lyric Theatre, LLC®

Majestic Presents LLC’

Saenger Aggregator Leverage Lender, LLC’
Saenger Theatre Developer, inc®

Saenger Theatre Manager, L1C°

Saenger Theatre Master Tenant LLC®

Saenger Theatre Partnership, Ltd’

SFPNY, LLCS

Saenger Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC?
Sundance Productions, Inc®

The Ambassador Theatre Group US Holdings, Inc®
CMT Concessions, LLC?

Incorporated in Germany

Subsidiaryundertaking

BB Entertainment Holding GmbH®
BB Promotion GmbH®

Entertainment Sales and Marketing Solutions GmbH®
{merged with MMS3)

Moulin Rouge Musical Produktions GmbH?
(previously known as Fandango Musical GmbH)

On Stage Productions GmbH*

Mehr-88 Entertainment GmbH**

Deutsche Eintrittskarten TKS GmbH?**

Deutsche Eintrittskarten TKS Service Center GmbH1?
Mehr-BB Theater GmbH®

Starlight Express GmbH!?

HP-Theater Produktionsgesellschaft mbH?*

Incorporated in Australia

Subsidiary undertaking

AKA Promotions {Australia) Pty Ltd!*

Encore Merchandise {Australia) Pty Limited!!

The Ambassador Theatre Group Asia Pacific Pty Limited!?

Associates and Joint Ventures

A.5.S. Concerts & Promotion GmbH»
Fatal Attraction Play Ltd®
HPCC Group Limited®

Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

a3

% Shares held

% Shares held

49.8%
18%
25%

Managing member
Theatre Operator
Theatre nperatar
Theatre operator
Financing company
Venue developer
Managing member
Theatre operator
Dormant

Production company
Venue developer
Production company
Holding company
Concessionaire

Principal activity

Holding company
Promotions company
Marketing services

Production company

Production company
Holding company
Ticketing company
Ticketing company
Theater operator
Production company
Production company

Principal activity
Marketing services
Dormant

Production company

Production company
Production company
Production company
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35. Subsidiary entities, associates and joint ventures and investments {Continued)

Incorporated in Australia {Continued)

Associates and Joint Ventures {Continued}

HP West End Limited*
JB UK Tour HI Productions Ltd*
Scout London Ltd ¥

The Old Vic Theatre Company (The Cut) Ltd **

ISM Show AG!

Mormon Trail Ltd?®

Planet Orlando Ltd*

Pretty Woman UK Holdings Ltd*
Pretty Woman Productions UK Ltd*
SATG Rights Limited®!

Suite 719, LLC*®

Train Times Broadway LP %7

Train Times SF LP¥7

The UK Mission Ltd*

OWS Goes Global Ltd

Beautiful Thing NY Ltd Partnership
Leopoldstadt Broadway LP3*

88 Notes LLC*®

People NY LP

Other investments

Cieven Investments Ltd

Enemias West End Ltd

for Forever London LLC

Glass Menagerie London Ltd

Lispenard Street Ltd

Moulin Production West End Ltd

National Theatre Productions Ltd

One Hundred and Forty Ltd

Waving Windows London Productions Ltd
Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC
Kimberly Akimbo LLC

Topdog 20% LLC

Stageservice Frankfurt am Main GmbH

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom

Switzerland
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
USA

USA

USA

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
UsA

USA

UsA

UsA

USA

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Xingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
USA

UsSA

USA

Germany

25%

16%
5%

50%

50%
12%
15%
27%
27%
50%
27%
25%
25%
10%
25%
11%
2.3%
35%
2%
17%

10%
0.53%
15%
0.38%
4.83
4%
2.38%
0.67%
15%
24.77%
1.5%
4%
10%

Production company

Production company
Production company

Production company

Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Dormant entity

Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company

Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Production company
Venue developer

Production company
Production company
Production company
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35. Subsidiary entities, associates and joint ventures and investments {Cantinued)

1These companies have a registered office of 72 Welbeck Street, London, W1G OAY

2 These companies have a registered office of 115 Shaftesbury Avenue, Cambridge Circus, London WC2H SAF

3These companies have a registered office of 2™ Floor Alexander House, Church Path, Woking, Surrey GU21 6E)

4These companies have a registered office of 6 Floor Charlotte Building, 17 Gresse Street, London, W1T 1QL

5 These companies have a registered office of Capitol Services, Inc., Lakeland Ave., Dover, OE 19901

5 These companies have a registered office of Capitol Corporate Services, inc., 8550 United Piaza Bidg. |} Ste 305,
Baton Rouge, LA 70809

?These companies have a registered office of Capitol Corporate Services, Inc., 206 E. 9th 5t., Ste 1300, Austin,

TX 78701

8This company has a registered office of Fitelson, Lasky, Aslan, Couture, & Garmise, Richard Garmise, 551 5th Ave

#605, New York, NY 10176

9These companies have a registered office of Riintgenstrafe 7, 68167 Mannheim

1This company has a registered office of Schulstr. 2-4, 40721 Hilden

NThese companies have a registered office of Suite 6.1, Level 6, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melbourne, Victoria 3004,
Australia

12 This company has a registered office of Suite 3, Level 1, 4 — 10 Bay Street, Double Bay, NSW 2028

3 This company has a registered office of CarmenstraRe 12, 8032 Zurich

¥ This company has a registered office of Komoedienstr. 11, 50667 Kdin

5 This company has a registered office of Erkrather Str. 30, 40233 Diisseldorf

16 This company has a registered office of LippeltstraRe 1, 20097 Hamburg

Y This company has a registered office of Stadionring 24, 44791 Bochum

8 This company has a registered office of 1800 Post Oak Blvd. 6 Boulevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas 77056

13 This company has a registered office of 1313 N Market St., Ste $100 Wilmington, DE 19801

2 These companies have a registered office of Capitol Services, Inc., 1218 Central Ave, Ste 100, Albany, New York,
12205

21 This company has a registered office of 55 Drury Lane, London WC28 5R2

ZThis company has a registered office of 71 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4BE

B This company has a registered office of Kleine Seilerstratie 1, 20359 Hamburg

2 This company has a registered office of 3009 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1200, Houston, Texas 77056-6779

5 This company has a registered office of 12 Fouberts Place, Second Floor, London W1F 7PG

¥ This company has a registered office of 7 Savoy Court, London WC2R OEX

# This company has a registered office of 230 West 41st Street, Suite 1703, New York, NY, USA 10036

% This company has a registered office of 630 Ninth Ave Ste 800, New York, NY, USA 10036

22 This company has a registered office of 445 Geary St., San francisco, CA, USA 94102

% This company has a registered office of 5™ Floor 65 Chandos Place, London, WC2N 4HG

3 This company has a registered office of The Old Vic, The Cut, London, SE1 8NB
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35. Subsidiary entities, associates and joint ventures and investments {Continued)

32This company has a registered office of First Floor, 39-41 Charing Cross Road, London, WC2H 0AR
32 This company has a registered office of 260 West 44™ street, suite 60 New York, NY, 10036

34 This company has a registered office of 630 Ninth Avenue, #1106, New York, NY10036
35 This company has a registered office of 1650 Broadway, Suite 800, New York, NY10019
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